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Summary Financial Information

10 % & BB
Year Ended 31 March EE=A=1+—HLEE
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
i VA et - VI K —- S
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
THEL FEL FHEL FHL THT
Revenue Wzs 575,254 983,944 1,485,054 1,252,210 1,319,089
Gross profit EF 102,281 237,380 559,165 627,102 623,048
Profit before tax BB RIAE 39,477 142,262 480,439 502,425 483,586
Profit for the year attributable AREER
to ordinary equity holders BaBEEA
of the Company [EEFERE 31,996 111,334 399,724 415,122 396,149
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRRERAF (L) 3.56 12.37 44.41 46.12 33.18
Non-current assets ERBDEE 32,672 33,658 19,740 20,166 23,548
Current assets MEBEE 229,156 291,009 780,552 393,162 1,623,493
Current liabilities AR 191,552 212,954 292,615 157,109 207,217
Non-current liabilities ERBERE 12,232 10,970 - = 250
Net assets BESE 58,044 100,743 507,677 256,219 1,439,574
Note: B 5T
The results of the Group for the financial years ended 31 March AEBHE_ZTERF  —ETLEFRZZTTNF
2006, 2007, 2008 and the statement of financial position items A=+t HLVBFENEEURAEERRZ
of the Group as at 31 March 2006, 2007, 2008 are extracted TERF  ZEELFERZTENEF=A=+—H
from the Company’s prospectus dated 30 March 2009 (the WEBIRAKRIER - DRHE_ZETNF=A=+
“Prospectus”). BRIZEHAARBRER((BRER]) -

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Significant Events of the Year
A 4E K 1o

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited was successfully listed
on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on
8 April 2009. It received 44 times over-subscription in the

Hong Kong Public Offer. ‘:L--__'::._.__.-r ——— '._: =
g Kong ".__ % :1'?" 3 £V el
i 5 11__1 L | “i‘_ 4 Y .f-

REEEZERERAFAN-_ZTAFMHANR -
RINEBEBHMERZMERLED - REBAREE D&
FAAZBERE -

Silver Base Group hosted its listing celebration
dinner at Futian Shangri-La, Shenzhen. Over
600 guests joined the dinner to celebrate the
successful listing of Silver Base Group.

REFENRYEAFTRENABEERTHY L
MENKE - BB ZE2MBRE -
ERREKEKS LT

Silver Base Group hosted its national
distributor conference 2009 at the

Venetian Macau. Most of our distributors
attended this annual conference to review.
the marketing strategy and discuss the future
planning for the coming year.

55 2 45 (B 5 S P L HF AT B2 2000 2 B

EHEAS - BEBF—ENEE  AND N —— -

REEE A EEE MBS - — R R ;
B % 5T 3 R 58 - &

Silver Base Group held its first annual
general meeting at Grand Hyatt Hong
Kong after its listing.

RESENEEBVEERTT
EHERERRRBFAEG -

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Significant Events of the Year
A 4R OK ol

L =%  Silver Base Group announced its interim results for the

six months ended 30 September 2009. More than 100
professionals from the finance and investment community
attended the analyst conference.

P

IREEEQHEE2009F9A308 L/ A B MR HIZESE - 7t
MRERBBIOOENEEALHET DM EE ©

Silver Base Group hosted a large-scale wine
tasting event at Shenzhen Intercontinental
Hotel on 20 November 2009. Over six
hundreds of distributors, wine-makers and
media joined the event.

| SREEEN 2009511 A20 B EFYIMNEE 5
BITAARBRE - BANBAHED
BAEOEERMEERERES -

Silver Base Group hosted a press conference
in its office to announce that it has won a 10-
year exclusive distribution right of Guojiao
1573 with 43% alcoholic content in China.

FHEANEBRAERTNCERTS L
EMERSTHE1573K543E HERR105E
BRI o

Silver Base Group formally signed an agreement
with Wuliangye Group for a 5-year global
exclusive distribution right (which was later
extended to cover a period of 15 years) of Yongfu
Jiangjiu during the China Sugar and Liguor
Conference, Spring 2010.

R2010F 2BAFRBSHME  REEHR
IRBREEEARBKRELOF2RBER
RS (HRERE15F) -

Silver Base Group hosted the Yongfu Jiangjiu release conference in Hong
Kong. Over 100 investors and analysts came to celebrate Silver Base
Group’s success in obtaining the global exclusive distribution right of
Yongfu Jiangjiu.
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Distribution Network

EXTENSIVE DISTRIBUTION NETWORK EREHNEHEMASE

"Tier System" to Manage the Distribution 5 Channels of Distribution to Fully
Network Effectively and Efficiently Penetrate into the China Market
FMEZRHERAN SRR EREHAE EFASERKEREXZHBEBAMS

Supermarkets
B

Hotels & Restaurants
EIEREE

Silver Base
Group'’s
Diversified

Liquor & Cigarette Specialty Stores

Product Mix BEEREEREEE

Group Purchases

A A A A A

)
Entertainments
1R 8435 P
IMAGE STORE NETWORK K &RJE##&
Image Store Network Types of Image Store
FERIERE EREESE

Wine Kingdom
‘ mESH

68% & 45% Wuliangye Image Store
Silver Base ‘ 68ERASETRABAFLRE

Image Store
REFRIE

Counters / Shop-in-shop
‘ HiETERIE

Cities

Lounties g 1002
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In March 2010, Wuliangye Group
granted a 15-year global sole distribution
right of Yongfu Jiangjiu (which spent
Wuliangye Group almost ten years to
develop and produce) to Silver Base
Group. Our purchase target in the

first year is 500 tones. As far as we
understand, the annual production
capacity of Yongfu Jiangjiu can reach
27,000 tonnes.

—E-TE=-F ARRERRT
BREEEEATHOTFRHERERER
EHmkEEEINTRF
EHBREHEE - BN EaFHREEE
FE500ME ° BEEMIATA - KRER A
FEEREZE27,000M -




Corporate Information
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio
Mr. Chung Wai Man

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze

Mr. Wang Jindong

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Wu Jie Si

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan

Mr. Guan Huanfei

Mr. Ma Lishan

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Fok Pik Yi Carol acis, Acs, cmILT
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Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chairman)
Mr. Guan Huanfei

Mr. Ma Lishan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan

Mr. Guan Huanfei

Mr. Ma Lishan

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan (Chairman)
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Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central, Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Sun Hung Kai International Limited
12th Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KYT-1111

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
27th Floor

The Sun’s Group Centre

200 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC

OF CHINA

5709, 5710 and 5713, 57th Floor

Office Tower

Shun Hing Square Di Wang Commercial Centre
5002 Shen Nan Dong Road

Shenzhen, PRC
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Corporate Information
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

STOCK NAME
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited

STOCK CODE
886

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

www.silverbasegroup.com

(information on the website does not form part of this
annual report)
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In March 2010, Luzhou Lao

Jiao granted a 10-year PRC sole
distribution right of its Guojido 1573
Series Baijiu with 43% alcohol content
to Silver Base Group. Our purchase
target in the first year is 250 tones
and can be increased progressively to
800 tones by reference to the market

conditions.

—E-TF=R BEMNEBEET
REEEEFEE1573R543E0A
B+ F P BB R A E o
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Chairman’s Statement

EN T8

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the
“Directors”) of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the
"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
refer to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2010.

Strong market demand Steady business
growth

In year 2009, in spite of the slow recovery of the world
economy after the global financial crisis, there was still
a strong demand for high-end liquors, especially in the
PRC market. Benefited from the Central Government'’s
economy stimulus package, China’s economy started to
rebound in the second half of 2009, becoming one of the
quickest recovered economic entities in the world with
8.7% GDP growth in 2009.

SEXRREREE

Mr. Liang Guoxing, the Group’s Chairman

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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Under this circumstance, the Group’s business recorded
a steady growth. For the financial year ended 31 March
2010, the Group’s operational revenue, profit attributable
to ordinary equity holders and basic earnings per ordinary
share amounted to HK$1.319 billion, HK$0.396 billion
and HK$0.332, respectively. To reward the support of the
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company to the
Group, the Board has recommended the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.185 per ordinary share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.142 per ordinary share,
the Group will pay an aggregate of dividend of HK$0.327
per ordinary share in the whole year, with dividend payout

ratio of approximately 98.6%.

Strengthening baijiu products series

Fulfilling the immense market demand

Along with China’s stable economic growth, consumers
become wealthier in the PRC as their disposable income
continuously increasing, enabling the liquor market in
China to keep growing rapidly. Amongst others, high-
end liquor products, especially the Chinese baijiu liquors,
are gaining more and more popularity in market, which
have driven their prices soaring. This trend will benefit the
supply chain of the whole liquor industry ranging from

manufacturers, distributors to retailers.

In light of this, the Group has continued to proactively
strengthen its product portfolio so as to cater for the
huge market demand. Since March 2010, we have
gained the global exclusive distribution right for Yongfu
Jiangjiu of Wuliangye Group for 15 years and the PRC
exclusive distribution right for Guojiao 1573 baijiu with
43% alcoholic content of Luzhou Lao Jiao for 10 years.
While the two newly introduced premium baijiu products
complement the existing Wuliangye Liquor Series,
they also further expand the Group’s product range,
consolidating the leading status of the Group in the

Chinese baijiu market.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
ENN X4

Achieving product diversification

Enhancing profitability

Apart from actively expanding the baijiu market, the
Group started expanding its high-end wines (and other
foreign liquors) into the PRC markets in November 2009.
As a commencement of the new business, the Group
has adopted prudent strategies, based on the market
demand, identified several dozen of wine brands from
a number of countries and introduced them into the
Chinese market. With the effort of the professional wine
business team, the Group has built up partnership with a
number of famous chateaus in France, their agencies and
wine producers from other countries, and has built a high
quality wine client base. The products have been receiving
good remarks since the introduction. Presently, the Group
is promoting and selling about 60 wine products, which
come from eight countries including Argentina, Australia,
Chile, France, Greece, lItaly, New Zealand and Portugal.
The products range from sparking wines, red wines, white

wines, port to dessert wines.

The Group is confident that the sales of foreign wine
and liquor products will be another growth driver of the
Group in the future. With more than 10 years' operation
experience in the Chinese baijiu industry, the Group has
a number of sub-distributors in different channels and
tens of thousands of sales points which formed a strong-
integrated distribution network covering all provinces and
major cities in the PRC. More than 70% of the existing
network can be used in the distribution of foreign wines,
the Group is therefore equipped with supreme advantage
in exploring the foreign wine market in China. The Group
believes this strategic deployment will be critical to
enhancing the Group's leading position in China’s liquor

distribution market.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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Optimising corporate structure

Recruiting talents for market development

In order to further explore the wine and liquor market and
complement a development strategy of diversified product
mix, the Group has recently established five professional
divisions, namely the Wuliangye Division, the Jiangjiu
Division, the Guojiao Division, the Foreign Liquors Division
and the Image Chain Store Division and has employed
experienced distribution management and marketing
professionals to actively explore business. Each division
focuses on its own business development, while at the
same time support each other to gain synergic effects,
with a view to pushing up the overall sales and profitability

of the Group.

Besides, to further consolidate the Group’s distribution
channels and to promptly respond to market demand, the
Group has also established an Information Management
and E-business Division to develop an online sales
platform. It also manages to establish and strengthen
Silver Base Image Stores progressively, of which include
two operational models namely the self-owned operation
in the brand name of “Wine Kingdom” and the one
with authorised distribution, for enhancement of brand
reputation of the Group’s products and operations of
direct sale and group purchases in major cities in China. As
at 31 March 2010, the Group has authorised distributors
in China to establish 43 image stores in a number of major
cities, including Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanghai, Beijing

and Chengdu.
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Chairman’s Statement

EN T8

PROSPECTS

China wine market will be benefited from
steady and sustained economic growth

During the first few months of 2010, sales of high-end
Chinese baijiu were booming, attributable to the Lunar
New Year, the traditional peak season for Chinese liquors
sales. It is expected that the average selling price of
Wuliangye product line will be raised steadily, by virtue
of its strong brand loyalty and solid market demand, as
well as insufficient supply of its products. Backed with its
existing strong sales capacity and extensive experience,
the Group will actively promote the sales of Guojiao 1573
Series baijiu with 43% alcohol content to increase its
market share. In respect of “soy flavour type” Chinese
baijiu, since it is currently occupying a relatively low
market share of Chinese baijiu market due to insufficient
supply, it represents a huge growth potential. The
Group believes the sales volume of “Yongfu Jiangjiu” of
Wuliangye Group, with an annual production capacity
of 27,000 tons, will grow rapidly in line with the market

trend, and will be widely received in the market.

In respect of foreign wines, China’s foreign wine market
remains in a low penetration rate as compared with that
of overseas in terms of per capita consumption amount.
Along with the accelerated urbanisation of the PRC and
growth in per capita income, foreign wine products will
be increasingly popularised in the market. Therefore, the
Group is optimistic about the market potential of quality
foreign wines, and believes that it will provide the Group
with enormous business opportunities. The Group will
continue to expand its liquor product professional teams,
employ experienced industry professionals with strong
customer base. The Group will also assess market trend
and market potential of different liquor products, enhance
communications with distributors. This will be conducive
to the Group’s understanding of preferences of the market
as well as the customers, and will help strengthen the

Group's distributor base.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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Exploring non-alcoholic drinks business and
further optimizing product structure

In order to optimise product portfolio, establish diversified
product mix, and fully utilise its comprehensive distribution
network, the Group will continue to identify and operate
other new product types for higher efficiency. According
to the product diversification plan, the Group will establish
at least two new divisions, namely the Beverage Division
and the Tea Specialty Division to focus on developing
non-alcoholic drinks and famous Chinese tea products,
in order to further enhance the overall profitability of the

distribution network.

Expanding the distribution network and channel
to enhance market share

To seize market opportunities more effectively, the Group
is committed to expand its sales network and channel and
further strengthen its distribution network and all-round
enhance its market penetration. The Group will increase
the number of sub-distributors and final points of sales in
different regions and through different types of channel in
future; the number of image chain-store network will be
increased to over 100 by the end of September 2010, and
following the market development, the store network will
gradually penetrate to various cities and counties in the
PRC.

In view of the rapid growth of online consumer
community, the Group has formulated its strategic
deployment in its online distribution platform. Its self-
owned image stores known as “Wine Kingdom” will
become the product delivery and logistics platform for its
e-commerce business and, will coordinate with other sales

campaigns, aiming at maximising their synergies.
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Chairman’s Statement
3

CONCLUSION

The Group believes that product diversification is essential
to the future growth of the Group. Through enhancing
our product offerings, the Group should be able to
consolidate its leadership in wine and liquor distribution
market in China. While having a larger distribution
network, the Group is easier to obtain more distribution
rights of premier products and enhances profitability and

market value of the Group.

Apart from business development, the Group always
gives weight to corporate social responsibility, actively
supports and participates in various public welfare
activities in mainland China and Hong Kong, and has
made its contributions to those community and charity
activities. In the coming few months, the Group will
donate approximately RMB15 million to aid the victims
of earthquakes in Qinghai for rehabilitation of their

communities.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like
to express my deepest gratitude to the Shareholders,
investors, business partners and customers for their
continued support. | would also like to thank our
management and staff for their hard work and
contributions. | will work hard with our fellow members
to make the Group reach new heights, thereby delivering

encouraging results for the Shareholders in future.

Liang Guoxing
Chairman
11 June 2010
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The Board proposed the payment

of a final dividend of HK$0.185 per
ordinary share of the Company. This,
together with an interitn dividend of
HK$0.142 per ordinary share, brings
the total dividend for the year to
HK$0.327 per ordinary share, or a
payout ratio of 98.6%.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

R e B o M

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

For the financial year 2010 (i.e. for the year ended
31 March 2010), the Group’s revenue increased by
5.3% to HK$1,319.1 million (for the financial year 2009:
HK$1,252.2 million). The overall gross profit of the Group
for the financial year 2010 in the amount of HK$623.0
million has maintained more or less the same as that of
last year (for the financial year 2009: HK$627.1 million).
The profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company slightly decreased by 4.6% to HK$396.1 million
(for the financial year 2009: HK$415.1 million). Earnings
per ordinary share of the Company were HK$0.332 (for
the financial year 2009: HK$0.461).

The Group strategically increased a lot of managerial
resource inputs and funds in expanding and deepening
its network and channel coverage in the PRC during the
financial year 2010 in order to enhance the foundation for
the Group’s future growth. According to our estimation,
the Group would have achieved about 5% growth of
profit for the financial year 2010 if the above expansion

strategies had not been adopted.

During the financial year 2010, the Group was supported
by channel operators who are equipped with well-
established distribution networks and proven channels
in the PRC and different overseas markets. Due to our
efficient channel development in the PRC market, our PRC
sales accounted for 44.2% of the total revenue for the
financial year 2010 (for the financial year 2009: 33.9%)

while the international market contributed the rest.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Liquor & Cigarette Products

The Group has been the largest distributor for the
Wuliangye Liquor Series since 2000. During the financial
year 2010, Wuliangye Liquor Series were the primary
revenue sources of the Group while we expect the
respective portion of the newly added liquor products in
our total revenue will increase remarkably in the financial
year 2011, given the rapid expansion of our product
portfolio in other Chinese baijiu, namely Guojiao 1573
Series and Yongfu Jiangjiu, and other foreign imported
wines. For the cigarette products, the Group also has
expansion plans to introduce more new cigarette brands,
including the newly introduced Huanghelou Brand
Cigarette, in the future to optimise its product portfolio of

cigarettes.

Business Prospects

To cope with the development in future, the Group has
recently established five professional business divisions
by integrating its existing operational structure according
to sales of different products and respective channels,
namely the Wauliangye Division, the lJiangjiu Division, the
Guojiao Division, the Foreign Liquors Division and the Image
Chained-Store Division. Each division will independently set
up a strict and comprehensive marketing/brand building/
employee assessment scheme in order to maximise the
efficiency, leverage the complementary advantages of each

division and fulfill various customers’ needs.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BRI Wt e B o M

Wuliangye Division

The Group’s existing Wuliangye Division will continue to
focus on the sale, promotion and marketing of Wuliangye
Liquor Series, and will operate in the direction towards
expertise and specialisation as well as professional

management.

In future, the Group will conduct optimisation and
refinement for its exclusively distributed Wuliangye Liquor
Series, which include improving the existing packaging,
developing new products with various capacity measures,
strengthening and innovating gift-packaging products
and so on, so as to broaden the target customer base,
strengthen product leading edge, as well as enhance sales

and profitability.

In light of the above developments, the supply of
Wouliangye Liquor Series in the financial year 2011 will be
relatively increased. The Group believes that there will be
increases in purchases and sales for the financial year 2011

as compared with the financial year 2010.

The period from March to August each year is the slack
season for the liquor industry in China, while the Group
is now preparing itself well for the upcoming peak season
such that the Group can give its full play of performance
in the months of high sales. The preparation works
include channel integration, network deepening, staff and
distributor training as well as marketing planning. The
Group is confident that it is able to increase the sales of
Wuliangye Liquor Series in the upcoming major Chinese

festivals.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Jiangjiu Division

In March 2010, the Group obtained the global exclusive
distribution right for Yongfu Jiangjiu, the newest product
of Wuliangye Group. By virtue of the Group’s past
outstanding performance and the vast development
potential of the Jiangjiu market, Wuliangye Group has
agreed recently to extend the term of this global exclusive
distribution right, which originally lasts for five years
only, to March 2025 for fifteen years after studying the
Group’s long-term market development proposals. Due to
relative low production capacity within the PRC market,
“soy flavour type” Chinese baijiu occupies a relatively
low market share of Chinese baijiu market (about 7%).
Following the launch of Yongfu Jiangjiu, with its maximum
annual production capacity up to 27,000 tons, the Group,
as the sole distributor, will have sufficient supply of

inventories to fulfill keen demand in the market.

The Group is fully confident in promoting Yongfu Jiangjiu
to surpass the sales target. The Group is able to efficiently
utilise its existing well-established network as it is expected
that 85% of the existing distributors are suitable to sell
Yongfu Jiangjiu while new channels continue to develop.
At the preliminary stage of development, the Group will
focus on exploring the core markets, such as the major

markets in Hebei, Henan, Shandong and Sichuan, etc.

The Group gives the utmost attention to train staff and
recruit professionals to achieve an all-round expertise,
specialisation and professional management, and to
achieve effective team spirit. The Group also maintains
good cooperation relationship with its upstream and
downstream business partners. In respect of product
promotion, Wuliangye Group is responsible to place
product advertisement on CCTV with a view to
establishing product reputation. Besides, the Group will
focus on deploying promotion resources in final point of
sales to benefit consumers directly in order to enhance

sales, that in turn increases the Group’s revenue.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

BRI Wt e B o M

On the downstream front, the annual national distributor
conference was held at the end of May 2010 in Shenzhen,
which gathered representatives from different cities and
provinces to review results in the past and formulate
objectives and planning proposals for the coming year,
so as to broaden and deepen existing channels, and to

consolidate mutual cooperation relationship.

Guojiao Division

In March 2010, the Group was appointed by Luzhou Lao
Jiao as the sole distributor for the Guojiao 1573 Series
baijiu with 43% alcohol content in China for 10 years till
2020, with purchase target between 250 and 800 tons
per year. Luzhou Lao Jiao is one of the top ten distillers
of Chinese liquors in the PRC and has a brand value of

approximately RMB10 billion.

The Group has specially set up the Guojiao Division for
this newly introduced product and assigned professional
team to take care of the respective sales and channel
management in the PRC market. Nowadays, the Group
owns a vast sales network for baijiu in China and all of the
existing channels can be used for sales of Guojiao 1573

Series baijiu with 43% alcohol content.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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87.6

The Group has been keeping a healthy
and sustainable growth in the past five
financial years with a cumulative annual
growth rate (CAGR) of net profit after
tax at 87.6%.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

R e B o M

In the financial year 2011, the Group will further deepen
channels and strengthen channel management to increase
sales efficiency. Meanwhile, the Guojiao Division is
developing gift-packaging for Guojiao 1573 Series baijiu
with 43% alcohol content to cater for demand of different
markets and customers to stimulate sales of this product.
At the national distributor conference held at the end
of May in Shenzhen this year, the Group has formulated
with respective distributors a comprehensive distribution
plan for the sale of Guojiao 1573 Series baijiu with 43%
alcohol content. The Group believes that, under the
leadership of professionals and with their professional
channel management knowledge, the Guojiao Division is
bound to accomplish the high sales target in the financial
year 2011.

Foreign Liquors Division

China is now one of the major wine markets in the world
and the living standard of consumers in China has been
improving. In view of this, the Group embarked formally
on the domestic high-end wine market at the end of 2009
by setting up the Foreign Liquors Division. According to
the Group's estimation, currently 70% of distributors are

suitable for distributing wine products.

Wine products will be sold via the following five major
channels: (1) supermarkets, (2) hotels and restaurants, (3)
liquor and cigarette specialty stores, (4) group purchase,
and (5) entertainment establishments. With the above
channels to promote the Group’s products nationwide,
the Group is convinced that the wine business can gain
considerable sales during the financial year 2011 under

such an enormous sales network.

In the national distributor conference held on 28 May
2010, the Group confirmed sales targets with all its
distributors and believed that the sales of liquor will be

increased accordingly.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Group presently distributes more than 60 wine brands
from eight countries, including France, Portugal, ltaly,
Australia, New Zealand, Argentina, Chile and Greece.
During the financial year 2011, the product origins will
increase to 10 countries, more than 80 brands in total.
Among the existing brands, approximately 80% are solely
distributed by the Group. Taking into account the Group's
enormous sales network and strong financial strength,
some suppliers and the Group are discussing about joint
development of new brands and products tailored for the

market of China.

Apart from table wines, the Group also purchases fine
wines from the world’s top vineyards. During the financial
year 2011, the Group will purchase wine futures issued
by top vineyards in Bordeaux to enrich the Group's wine
stock portfolio. In addition, the Group will also invest
in famous wines of different vintages with a view to

consolidating its leadership in the PRC market.

In view of the huge growth potential of the wine market
in China, the Group assigned a number of professionals
to explore the wine market, serve the PRC domestic
customers and fulfill their demands. The Group places
emphasis in training. Apart from regular internal training,
it will also arrange vineyard representatives to introduce
wines in China, so as to enhance product knowledge of

the sales team.

The Group will organise wine tasting and seminars
regularly for the outsiders, which not only can facilitate
purchases by the distributors, but also help further
promote the wine-tasting culture in the PRC, thus
reinforce customer’s knowledge about wines. Besides, the
Group will assist corporate clients in organising business

cocktail parties for upgrading their corporate images.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

PR Wt e B or M

Other than wines, the Group will also consider proactively
purchasing various foreign liquors such as whisky, Cognac,
Tequila, etc., in order to diversify product offering, and to
satisfy demands for different foreign liquors by customers
in the PRC.

Image Chain Store Division

To enhance the Group’s brand image and customers’
recognition of the Group’s products, and increase sales,
during the second half of the financial year 2010, the
Group commenced to build a nationwide network of
image chain stores that can cover most of the first to third
tier major cities to fully support the Group’s direct sales

and downstream distributor operations.

In respect of all major Chinese baijiu products distributed
by the Group, the Group licensed distributors to open
specialty stores for Wuliangye (68%vol.) and (45%vol.) in
different provinces and cities. These specialty stores can
enhance consumers’ confidence in product quality and
recognition as well as establish corporate brand image
for the Group effectively. As at 31 March 2010, there has
been more than 40 image stores operated by the Group’s
distributors and it is expected that 30 more of these stores

will be established by the end of September this year.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Targeting at the vast and expanding high-end corporate
and group purchase market, especially more and more
companies emphasise the importance of their corporate
brand and image, the Group has recently been building its
owned gift service center network, the "Wine Kingdom”
image stores with the first three opened in Changsha
and Shenzhen, providing one-stop gift purchase and
distribution services for corporate and group customers.
Through the establishment of a membership grading
system, corporate customers can select appropriate gifts
from the Group’s diversified product offerings and enjoy
unique gift packaging and swift distribution services.
Meantime, “Wine Kingdom” image stores can coordinate
with customers’ marketing promotion activities by assisting
customers in organising business wine reception to

enhance their corporate and brand images.

In future, the Group will continue to deploy more
resources in establishing more “Wine Kingdom” image
stores to cover most of the first to third tier cities
nationwide. It is expected that about 30 more stores
will be established by the end of September this year.
The service objective is to have a nationwide distribution
network that can ultimately deliver products to designated
locations in major cities within one hour. Meanwhile, the
Group is developing an e-commerce platform for liquor
products with a website constructed under the brand-
name of “Bei Bei Gan"” (¥#F), which will integrate with

the Group-owned “Wine Kingdom” image stores.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

R e B o M

Prospects

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to increase
the utilisation of its exiting channel networks through
identifying and operating other new types of product. At
the same time, it expects to establish at least two new
business divisions according to the progress of product
diversification, namely the Beverages Division for sales
of various non-alcoholic drinks, including herbal tea. The
Group is presently in negotiation with a hundred-year-old
brand for cooperation. On the other hand, the Group is
considering the setting up of the Tea Specialty Division for

sales of various Chinese famous tea products.

The Group is presently discussing about the sole
distributorship of products with various Chinese and
overseas famous wine producers so as to further enhance
its product portfolio. The Group hopes to accomplish high
quality assurance and product diversification and maintain

a long-term gross profit of 40-50%.

The Group is optimistic about the growing demand for
its products in both China and the international markets.
The Group expects the new products introduced to its
product portfolio including Yongfu Jiangjiu, Gaojiao 1573
and various foreign wines, will start to make significant
contribution to the Group’s revenue and profit in the

financial year 2011.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Currently, the Group is distributing
more than 60 brands of wine
products including sparkling V\;ine,
white wine, red winra, port and
dessert wine imported from eight
countries, including Argentina,
Australia, Chile, France, Greece, ltaly,

New Zealand and Portugal.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Sales and Gross Profit

Our revenue mainly derived from sales of high end liquors
and cigarettes. For the financial year 2010, our total
revenue was HK$1,319.1 million, while our revenue for
the financial year 2009 was HK$1,252.2 million. Our
total revenue for the financial year 2010 grew by 5.3%
over that of last year, largely due to the continuing
keen demand of high end baijiu in the PRC. Our overall
gross profit for the financial year 2010 in the amount of
HK$623.0 million has maintained more or less the same
as that of last year (for the financial year 2009: HK$627.1

million).

Our revenue derived from the distribution of liquors
represented approximately 95.8% of our total revenue
for the financial year 2010 and approximately 94.4%
of our revenue for the financial year 2009. Accordingly,
our revenue derived from the distribution of cigarettes
represented about 4.2% of our total revenue for the
financial year 2010 and about 5.6% for the financial year
2009.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased significantly to HK$31.5
million for the financial year 2010 (for the financial year
2009: HK$5.8 million) mainly attributable to the receipt
of marketing support fund of HK$27.7 million from our

liquor supplier.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses represented
approximately 8.9% of our revenue for the financial year
2010. The expenses increased to HK$117.0 million for the
financial year 2010 (for the financial year 2009: HK$74.3
million) mainly as a result of an increase in staff cost for
sales people as well as channel development, marketing
and promotion expenses in order to further expand and

deepen our network and channel coverage in the PRC.

Administrative Expenses

Administration expenses represented 4.0% of our revenue
for the financial year 2010. The expenses decreased
to HK$53.0 million for the financial year 2010 (for the
financial year 2009: HK$54.7 million) mainly attributable
to the decrease in listing fees in respect of our initial
public offer (“IPO") launched in March 2009.

Tax Expenses

The effective tax rate changed from approximately 17.4%
for the financial year 2009 to approximately 18.1% for
the financial year 2010 which was in line with the fact
that we have higher portion of our sales derived from
the PRC market for the financial year 2010 than that
of the financial year 2009. Our profit derived from the
international market is subject to Hong Kong profits tax
at a rate of 16.5% for the financial year 2010 (for the
financial year 2009:16.5%) while the profit generated
from the PRC market is subject to the PRC enterprise
income tax rate at a rate of 18%, 20% and 22% for the

calendar years 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Net Profit for the Year

As the Group has strategically increased a lot of
managerial inputs, resources and expenses in expanding
and deepening its network and channel coverage in the
PRC during the financial year 2010 in order to enhance
the foundation for the Group’s future growth, the net
profit after tax for the year was slightly decreased by 4.6%
to HK$396.1 million for the financial year 2010 (for the
financial year 2009: HK$415.1 million). The Group believes
that such moves were necessary for the sake of future
growth although at the expense of the current profit. The
Group also estimates that it would have achieved about
5% growth of profit for the financial year 2010 if such

expansion strategies had not taken place.

Dividends

On 19 November 2009, the Directors declared interim
dividends of HK$170,400,000 representing HK$0.142 per
ordinary share of the Company to the Shareholders. The
interim dividends were fully paid during the financial year
2010.

The Directors proposed to declare final dividends of
HK$220,150,000 representing HK$0.185 per ordinary

share of the Company to the Shareholders.

It indicates a nearly 98.6% dividend payout ratio of the
profit for the financial year 2010.

Trade Receivables

Generally, our customers settle payment obligations in
cash or promissory notes endorsed by reputable banks
before our goods were delivered. We also grant a credit
period of up to 90 days to some of our long-term or
reliable customers such as duty free outlets for the
international market. We adopt stringent credit policy such

that the level of our trade receivables is considered low.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2010, the trade receivables were HK$43.3
million (as at 31 March 2009: HK$26.0 million). The trade
receivables increased as there were more promissory
notes which have not yet been matured at the year end
date and therefore, those respective trade receivables,
although secured by promissory notes, were still treated
as unsettled at the year end. Approximately 89.2% of the
trade receivables are within two months as at 31 March
2010. No provision for impairment for the trade receivable
is necessary as the outstanding debts are considered to be

recoverable.

Trade Payables

The trade payables were mainly for purchasing (1)
Wouliangye Liquor Series distributed for the international
market, the settlement of which was by way of letter of
credit, and (2) packaging materials for the production of

Wuliangye Liquor Series.

As at 31 March 2010, the trade payable was HK$27.1
million (as at 31 March 2009: HK$1.9 million). The trade
payables increased as more supply of Wuliangye Liquor
Series can be available to us prior to the financial year end
of 2010 than that of the financial year 2009.

Inventories
We generally maintain our inventories at certain
acceptable level to meet the seasonal, market and other

commercial needs.

As at 31 March 2010, our inventories were HK$314.6
million (as at 31 March 2009: HK$189.5 million). The
increase in inventories was primarily due to (1) more
supply of Wuliangye Liquor Series to us prior to the
financial year end date of 2010, and (2) our strategy to
pipe up our stock level during the slow season in order to
meet with the keen demand in the high season with better

prices.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

Our working capital was healthy and positive for the
periods under review. We had significantly increased
our cash inflow after the IPO completed in April 2009
and as at 31 March 2010, there was a cash balance of
approximately HK$977.7 million (As at 31 March 2009:
HK$85.8 million). As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s net
current assets were approximately HK$1,416.3 million
(as at 31 March 2009: HK$236.1 million), The Directors
believe that the current high level of funding will enable
us to meet the working capital requirements for our future

business expansion.

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 March 2010, our banking facilities in terms of
trust receipt loans of HK$96.8 million (as at 31 March
2009: HK$53.2 million) were secured by our investment
property with a net book value of HK$7,757,000 (as at
31 March 2009: HK$7,966,000) and were backed up by a
corporate guarantee provided by the Company. The trust
receipt loan as at 31 March 2010 were denominated in
United States dollars and were interest-free within a credit
period of 60 to 90 days and bore interest charged at the
Hong Kong dollar/applicable currencies best lending rate
minus 1% per annum or the bank’s prevailing funding
cost, whichever is higher, after the credit period. All trust

receipt loans were fully settled within the credit period.

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. Revenue derived and operating expenses
incurred by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
mainly denominated in RMB. The Directors consider
that a reasonably possible change of 5% to 10% in the
exchange rate between HK dollars and Renminbi per year
would have no material impact of the Group’s results
and therefore hedging through the use of derivative

instruments is considered unnecessary.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The funding and treasury policies of the Group are
centrally managed and controlled by the senior
management in Hong Kong. The Group's financing
activities are managed centrally by maintaining an
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to finance
the Group’s operations. The Group also ensures the
availability of the bank credit facilities to address any short
term funding requirements. The Group’s cash and bank

balances are placed with reputable financial institutions.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total adjusted equity plus net
debt. Net debt is calculated as the sum of interest-bearing
bank borrowings, trade and bills payables and other
payables less cash and bank balances. Capital represents
equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratio was 5.6% as at 31
March 2009 while there was a net asset position as at 31
March 2010, the calculation of the gearing ratio is not

meaningful.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

We had a total work force of 318 employees as at
31 March 2010 (as at 31 March 2009: 200 employees).
We have implemented our remuneration policy, bonus
and share option schemes based on the achievements
and performance of employees. We have also participated
in the mandatory provident fund Scheme in Hong Kong
and state managed retirement benefit scheme in the PRC.
We continue to provide training courses for our staff to

enhance their professions.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Share Option Scheme

On 20 February 2009, we have adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the growth of the Group. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include, without limitation,
employees, Directors and any other eligible persons. Up
to 31 March 2010, no share option has been granted or

agreed to be granted to any person under the Scheme.

Use of Proceeds from IPO
On 8 April 2009, we were successfully listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with net proceeds of

approximately HK$927.5 million.

As stated in the Prospectus, we intend to use
approximately 65% of the net proceeds for business
development, approximately 25% for increasing inventory
levels, approximately 10% for our general working
capital. As at the date of this report, we do not anticipate
any material changes to the plan. (Details of the use
of proceeds from IPO are set out in the “Report of the

Directors”).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liang Guoxing, aged 44, was appointed on
12 September 2007, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. Mr. Liang is also the chairman of remuneration
committee of the Company and a director of others
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liang is primarily
responsible for the overall corporate strategies, planning
and business development of our Group. Mr. Liang has
over 11 years of experience in the sales and distribution
of Chinese liquor and cigarettes. Mr. Liang is a standing
committee member of the 11th Session of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Zhanjiang and
a member of the 10th Session of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Guangdong Province.
He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny, aged 42, was appointed
on 12 September 2007, is the chief executive officer of
the Group and a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Chen is a member of remuneration committee and
compliance committee of the Company. Mr. Chen joined
the Group in January 2007. He is responsible for the
overall strategic implementation, business development
and daily operations and management of our Group.
Mr. Chen has extensive knowledge and experience in
business development, international trade and project
management in sales and distribution of electrical,
mechanical and consumer products. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Chen was the general manager of Faithful
Trading (H.K.) Limited and the operations controller of
GOME Home Appliances (H.K.) Ltd. Further, Mr. Chen
held a number of executive positions with the subsidiaries
of Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code:
00025), which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from September 1993 to July 2002 during
which he was responsible for the China market and
different overseas markets such as the United States,
Vietnam, Myanmar, Philippines and Japan. Mr. Chen is
a member of the 13th Session of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, Yueshou District,
Guangzhou City. He is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Arts in 1990, and a bachelor’s degree
in Administrative Studies and a certificate in Management
in 1992, all from York University.

Director Profiles
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Director Profiles

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio, aged 56, was
appointed on 1 April 2010. Mr. Ozorio joined the Group
in October 2009. He is responsible for capital operational
matters of the Group including merger and acquisition,
long-term investment strategies, investor relationship
management and business development for new products.
He has more than 30 years of experience in investment
banking and equity capital management. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Ozorio had served at Merrill Lynch, PF &
Smith (HK) Limited, Anderson Man (Investment Services)
Limited, Refco Futures Limited, Lippo Securities Limited,
Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited and Sun Hung Kai
Investment Services Limited. Mr. Ozorio’s last position with
Sun Hung Kai Investment Services Limited was Managing

Director of Institutional Sales.

Mr. Chung Wai Man, FCCA, CPA, aged 46, was
appointed on 12 September 2007, is the chief financial
officer of the Group and a director of a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Chung joined the Group in May 2004. He
is responsible for overseeing the investment, legal and
financial affairs, and general business development of
our Group. Mr. Chung has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, taxation and finance. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chung has worked for two listed companies as
the position of chief financial officer. Mr. Chung had held
a managerial position with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for
about five years. He became an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (then
known as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants) in 1995
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom in 1999.
In December 1989, Mr. Chung obtained a bachelor’s
degree (honours) in Social Sciences from the University of
Hong Kong, and, in November 1998, a master’s degree
in International Business Management from the City

University of Hong Kong.
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Ms. Cheung Mei Sze, aged 37, was appointed on
6 March 2008. She is the Head of Finance of the Group
and a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ms.
Cheung joined our Group in September 2000 and is
responsible for the financial and accounting affairs of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cheung was an
assistant supervisor in Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, a CPA firm.
Ms. Cheung holds a bachelor’s degree in Arts majoring in

Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Wang Jindong, aged 51, was appointed on 1 April
2010. He joined the Group in November 2008. He is
the financial controller, China region of the Group.
Mr. Wang is responsible for the finance, accounting
and legal matters of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Wang
graduated from the Guangdong Radio and TV University
(BREFEERKE) with a bachelor degree in accountancy
and is a qualified accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang
has more than 30 years of experience in accounting
and administration in government organisation and
state owned enterprise in the PRC as well as overseas
enterprises, including the Guangdong Administration of
Coal Geology (BERMEMHEF), Shenzhen Jewellery City
Enterprise Company Limited (FRINTERBHEEEGR R A])
and K&M Asia Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu lJie Si, aged 58, was appointed on 6 March 2008.
Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in finance and
corporate management in the PRC. From 1984 to 1995,
Mr. Wu served in numerous positions in the Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC"), including the
president of ICBC Shenzhen Branch. From 1995 to 1998,
Mr. Wu served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen
Municipal Government. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Wu
served as the assistant to the governor of Guangdong
Province. From 12 February 2000 to 8 May 2001, Mr. Wu
joined Guangdong Enterprise (Holdings) Limited (“GDE")
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Director Profiles

as a director during the process of assisting its debt
restructuring. Mr. Wu ceased to be a director of GDE
shortly after the closing of its debt restructuring on
22 December 2000. From 2000 to 2005, Mr. Wu was
appointed as the chairman of Guangdong Yue Gang
Investment Holdings Company Limited (B3R &E% &K
BMRAF]) and GDH Limited (BRIZARARAF). Mr. Wu
has been appointed in various positions in companies
listed on the Stock Exchange and the New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wu served as the chairman of Guangdong
Investment Limited (stock code: 00270) (“GDI"”) from
March 2000 to March 2001, as a director of GDI from
March 2000 to April 2005 and as the honorary president
of GDI from March 2001 to April 2005. Mr. Wu also
served as a director and honorary president of Guangdong
Tannery Limited (stock code: 01058) from February 2004
to April 2005. Both companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. While Mr. Wu was serving as
the chairman and then an honorary president of GDI, GDI
and its subsidiaries underwent a debt restructuring, details
of which were included in GDI's announcements dated
23 December 2000 and 6 May 2003. From April 2005 to
January 2008, Mr. Wu was appointed as the executive
director and from June 2005 to January 2008, Mr. Wu
was appointed as the managing director and the chief
executive officer of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 00754) which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. From May 2007 to August 2008,
Mr. Wu also served as an independent non-executive
director of Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited
(Stock Code: YGE) which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited
(stock code: 00392), China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 03968) and China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as “China Insurance

International Holdings Company Limited”) (stock code:
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00966), companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wu is also a non-executive director of
China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 00855)
and Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock code: 00604),
and a non-executive director and vice chairman of China
Aoyuan Property Group Limited (stock code: 3883), all
of which are companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wu obtained a master’s degree in
Economics in 1984 and a doctor’s degree in Economics
in 1996, both from Research Institution of the People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Wu completed post-doctoral research
work in Theoretical Economics at Nankai University in
1998-2000 and was qualified as a professor in theoretical

economics in Nankai University in 2001.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, aged 40, was appointed on

6 March 2008. He is the chairman of audit committee
and compliance committee of the Company and is a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
From January 1995 to April 1997, Mr. Hung worked with
the audit division of Coopers & Lybrand Certified Public
Accountants (now known as PricewaterhouseCoopers)
and was a Supervisor. In 1997, he started his own
practice under the name “Hung Sui Kwan Certified
Public Accountant”. In March 2000, Mr. Hung joined Get
Nice Securities Limited (“Get Nice Securities”) (formerly
known as “Get Nice Investment Limited”, a subsidiary
of Get Nice Holdings Limited (“Get Nice”) (stock code:
00064), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) as a senior management. During the period
from January 2001 to September 2002, he was appointed
as an executive director of Get Nice. He is currently a
director of Venture Partners CPA Limited, the company
secretary of Get Nice and is registered as Responsible
Officer of Get Nice Capital Limited (a subsidiary of Get
Nice) under the SFO (for regulated activity “advising on
corporate finance”). From January 2005 to August 2006,
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Director Profiles

Mr. Hung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 00079), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. In 1991, Mr. Hung obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree from the University of Hong Kong. In
1996, he became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (then known
as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants). In 1997,
he became an associate member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.
Mr. Hung currently holds a practicing certificate issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Guan Huanfei, aged 53, was appointed on 6 March
2008. He is a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and compliance committee of the Company.
Mr. Guan is experienced in the finance and insurance
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Guan served
various senior managerial positions in the People’s
Insurance Company of China (Jilin Branch) (FREA RF
BB HME D AF]), the business department of Hong
Kong and Macao Regional Office of China Insurance
Group (FElfRiEREEER), Ming An Insurance Company
(Hong Kong) Limited (%f’éﬁﬁ{%ﬁﬁﬁ@’“ﬁ) and China
Pacific Insurance Co., (HK) Ltd. (FRAFFREB(EH)
BBRRAT]). Mr. Guan also helds offices with the Bank
of Communications, including the deputy chairman of
REEERE
ZEgR8EEZEE), deputy chairman of credit asset
management committee ((EEEAEEBZECIETE

), chairman of loan verification committee (BEXEEE

the risk asset management committee (/&

il

A

o

gF{FZ£E8) and deputy general manager of the Bank

\

of Communications Hong Kong Branch, the director of
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (RXiBEIRTTIE
sEBMR AR and is the chairman and chief executive of
China BOCOM Insurance Co., Ltd. (FEIZIBREARA

Al). In January 2010, Mr. Guan has been appointed as
executive director and general manager of BoCommlLife

Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Guan is also an economic
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and technical adviser to the People’s Government of Jilin
province, the PRC (HME ARBUTK B IMER). Mr
Guan obtained a doctor’s degree in Economics in 2000
from Wuhan University and was a post-doctoral researcher
in Theoretical Economics with Fudan University from 2000
to 2002. Mr. Guan has been a part-time researcher of the

Insurance Research Centre of Fudan University since 2004.

Mr. Ma Lishan, aged 58, was appointed on 6 March
2008. He is a member of audit committee, remuneration
committee and compliance committee of the Company.
Mr. Ma is experienced in corporate management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Ma served various senior
managerial positions in the PRC food, edible oils and
wine industries. Mr. Ma was appointed as an executive
director from January 1996, was appointed as director
and managing director from May 1997 and was appointed
from April 2002 to June 2003 as the managing director
of China Foods Limited (stock code: 00506) (formerly
known as “China Foods Holdings Limited (fBR %R
E£EAR2AA)" and “COFCO International Limited (47
T BB AR AE])"), which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. In 2000, he was appointed as
the deputy general manager of China Foods Import and
Export (Group) Co., Ltd. (FEE@REM#EL (B BRA
7]). From June 2003 to July 2005, Mr. Ma was the deputy
managing director of COFCO (Hong Kong) Limited (&
BHRREEGEE)ERATF). From June 2008 to January
2009, Mr. Ma was an executive director of Sino Resources
Group Limited (carrying on business in Hong Kong as Sino
Gp Limited) (f&/M&REEHBR DA
Kenfair International (Holdings) Limited (%fEIER (320%)
BBRAA]) (stock code: 00223) which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. In 1975, Mr. Ma graduated

) (formerly known as

from the University of Foreign Languages in Beijing.
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Senior Management Profiles

AR P e

The senior management of the Group comprises all the

executive directors and the following persons:

Ms. Fok Pik Yi, Carol, ACIS, ACS, CMILT, aged 43, the
company secretary of the Group. She joined the Group
in December 2009. Ms. Fok is mainly responsible for
overseeing the Group’s corporate governance, regulatory
compliance and legal matters and advising on corporate
development, information disclosure and internal control
policies and procedures of the Group. Ms. Fok obtained
a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Surrey in the United Kingdom and a Master
of Science degree in International Shipping and Transport
Logistics from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is
an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the chartered member of
the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport in Hong
Kong. Ms. Fok has substantial experience in company

secretarial practice and business management.

Mr. Wu Xiaoming, aged 47, is the general manager,
Wuliangye Division of Silver Base Trading and
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Wu joined the
Group in December 2009 and is wholly responsible for the
marketing and sales management of Wuliangye Ligours.
Mr. Wu has substantial experience in sales and marketing
in the high-end baijiu industry and has extensive industry
resources and considerable experience in sales and
operations management. He graduated from the Faculty
of Mechanical and Automation Engineering of Shanghai

Second Polytechnic University (F/8% — T2 K 2) in 1986.
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Mr. Hou Linhui, aged 36, is the general manager,
Guojiao Division of Silver Base Trading and Development
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Hou joined the Group in July
2009 and is mainly responsible for the sales and marketing
management of Guojiao 1573 baijiu with 43% alcohol
content. Mr. Hou has 12 years of experience in the
production and sales of baijiu. He graduated from Faculty
of Applied Computer Study of Hefei PLA Artillery Academy
(FEARBHEA B LBE) in 1997.

Mr. Ren Yingbao, aged 38, is the general manager,
Jiangjiu Division of Silver Base Trading and Development
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Ren joined our Group in May
2010 and is wholly responsible for the sales and marketing
management of jiangjiu (soy flavor baijiu). Mr. Ren has
previously worked with various well-known high-end baijiu
corporations and has substantial experience in sales and
marketing. He also has extensive and practical experience
in the areas of channel development, brand building,
distributor development, team building and training
management. He graduated from the Faculty of Sericulture
of the Anhui Agricultural University (2% KE) in
1994.
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Senior Management Profiles

AR P e

Mr. Man Hay Tung, aged 56, is the general manager,
Silver Base Image Store Division of Silver Base Trading
and Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mr. Man joined
the Group in January 2010 and is wholly responsible for
the development and operations of Silver Base image
chain stores. Mr. Man previously held senior management
positions in various well-known corporations in the
consumer goods industry and has substantial experience
in the areas of retail and franchise management in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. He also has extensive and
practical experience in team building and staff training and
has made significant achievements in the areas of store
expansion and operations management. He graduated
from the University of Alberta in Canada in 1980 and

holds a Bachelor degree of Commerce.

Ms. Zhao Xin, aged 32, is the chief operation officer,
Sales Operation and Management Division of Silver
Base Trading and Development (Shenzhen) Co., Limited.
Ms. Zhao is mainly responsible for monitoring the
daily business operations, sales administration, sales
management and customer relationship in the PRC
markets of the Group. She joined our Group in February
2006. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhao was the
media supervisor of the advertisement division of Henan
Provincial Foodstuffs Co., Ltd. (A& BIE 52 T]) and the
client liaison manager of the Henan liaison department of
National Confectionery and Alcohol Affair (ZBIMEBE).
She is an advanced-level sales and marketing personnel (&
4% & $4RM) registered with the Henan Provincial Sales and
Marketing Committee (A4 &%) and is certified by
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (FZEARLFMEAE
#B) as specialised in elementary business administration.
Ms. Zhao holds a diploma in Interior Arts from the Henan
Provincial Employee’s University of Light Industry (] 5 4& %
TEBTAEZ)in the PRC.
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Mr. Lau Chee Shing, aged 50, is the general manager,
Eastern and Northern China Region of Silver Base Wine &
Spirit (Shenzhen) Co., Limited. Mr. Lau joined the Group
in May 2010 and is responsible for business development
and management of the wine and beverages business
in Eastern and Northern China Region. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked for FMCG industry over 25 years
of marketing management experience, possesses more
than 15 years of experience in Mainland China. Mr. Lau
obtained a diploma in Business Management awarded
jointly by the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and Master degree of Business

Administration from Oklahoma City University in1993.

Mr. Hong Sze Lung, CFA, FCCA, CPA, aged 38, is the
corporate finance director of Silver Base International
Development Co. Limited. Mr. Hong joined the Group
in April 2010 and is responsible for corporate finance
division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hong was senior
vice president of Dandelion Group for several years.
Prior to 2005, Mr. Hong held a managerial position with
PricewaterhouseCoopers for 10 years, responsible for
corporate finance, merger and acquisition and recovery
business. He is currently an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Chartered Financial Analyst. In 1995,
Mr. Hong obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Arts majoring

Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Senior Management Profiles

AR P e

Mr. Wong Tsan Yeung, aged 47, is the director,
information management & e-Commerce of Silver Base
International Development Co., Limited. Mr. Wong joined
the Group in April 2010 and is responsible for defining
the IS/IT strategy to position the Group in a competitive
market position in the F&B industry. Mr. Wong has over
20 years of experience in the information technology
industry and previously held several managerial positions
in a number of information technology services providers
such as Unisys and HP. Mr. Wong has a Master degree
in Business Administration (Executive) from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of
Project Management Institute and a registered PRINCE2

practitioner.

Ms. Chan Sing Doris, aged 35, is the sales manager
of Silver Base International Development Co., Limited.
Ms. Chan joined our Group in November 1997. She is
now responsible for sales and distribution of high-ended
Chinese liquor in Hong Kong market and maintaining close
relationship with our customers. Ms. Chan performed
as manager of administration and human resources of
the Group previously, and was proficient in our business
operation. Ms. Chan enrolled in a course on corporate

administration at Hong Kong Technical College.

Ms. Kong Wai Man, aged 41, is the marketing manager
of Silver Base International Development Co., Limited.
Ms. Kong joined the Group in September 2004 and is
responsible for marketing development of international
tobacco and liquor markets. Ms. Kong has over 10 years
of experience in marketing. Prior to joining our Group, she
worked for one of the global leading international tobacco
companies as a brand marketing manager. Ms. Kong
has a Bachelor’'s degree in Chinese and English Bilingual
Secretarial Management from Jinan University (K2
in the PRC.
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Ms. Liu Xiujuan, aged 33, is the senior manager of
Silver Base International Development. Ms. Liu joined the
Group in November 2004 and is responsible for liaising
with Wuliangye and handling the export business of the
Chinese famous liquor. Ms. Liu has over 5 years experience
in Wuliangye business in the Group. Ms. Liu holds a
Bachelor degree in Philosophy from the University of Sun
Yat-sen in the PRC.

Ms. Luk Wan Sang Oriana, aged 39, is the business
manager of Silver Base International Development Co.,
Limited. Ms. Luk joined the Group in December 2002 and
is responsible for business development of PRC tobacco
division. Ms. Luk has over 10 years of work experience
in trading companies. Ms. Luk has a Bachelor’'s degree
in Business Administration from the Royal Melbourne

Institute of Technology University.

Mr. Tse Chung Leung, aged 37, is the sales manager
of Silver Base International Development Co., Limited.
Mr. Tse joined the Group in September 2000. Mr. Tse
is responsible for, and has knowledge in, the sales and
distribution of liquor and cigarettes in the Southeast Asian

and PRC duty-free markets.

Ms. So Hiu Tung Miranda, CPA, aged 39, is the senior
finance manager of Silver Base International Development
Co., Limited. Ms. So joined the Group in August 2007 and
is responsible for financial reporting affairs and assisting
the Board in formulating internal control procedures of the
Group. She has about 14 years of experience in financial
and accounting with different corporations. In 1998, she
became a Certified Practising Accountant registered with
CPA Australia (then known as the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants) and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(then known as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants).
Ms. So holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce majoring
in Accounting from the University of Canberra, Australia
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from the

University of Portsmouth in the United Kingdom.
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Report of the Directors
Rl

The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
(the “Board”) presents their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Silver Base Group
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
as an exempted limited liability company under the
Companies Law on 12 September 2007. Pursuant to a
group reorganisation (the “Corporate Reorganisation”)
to rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation
of the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
the Company became the holding company of the Group
on 26 September 2008.

Details of the Corporate Reorganisation are set out in
the paragraph headed “Corporate re-organisation” on
Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company dated
30 March 2009 (the “Prospectus”). The Company’s shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
8 April 2009 (the “Listing Date"”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the

financial year.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 85 to
172.

An interim dividend of HK$0.142 per ordinary share was
paid on 14 December 2009. The Board has recommended
a final dividend of HK$0.185 per ordinary share for the
year ended 31 March 2010 (for the year ended 31 March
2009: nil) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), amounting to HK$220.15 million.

Upon approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, the final dividend will be paid on
Thursday, 12 August 2010 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 30 July 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 2 August 2010 to Monday, 9 August 2010,
both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of
share will be effected. In order to qualify for the above
final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 30 July 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment, and investment property of the Group during
the financial year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the

financial statements, respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the financial year are set out in note 25 to the

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the Companies Law of

the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 February 2009, the Shareholders had approved
and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). Key terms of the Share Option Scheme are

summarised below:

(i) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide an incentive for the Qualified Participants (as
defined below) to work with commitment towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Shareholders and to retain
and attract persons whose contributions are or may
be beneficial to the growth and development of the

Group.

(i) Qualified Participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employee, executive and non-executive
Directors, customer or supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group, consultant, adviser,

contractor, business partner or service provider.

(iii) The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 120,000,000 shares, being 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at 8 April 2009,

the Listing Date on the Stock Exchange.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to
time.

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general
meeting, the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options granted
to any eligible participant under the Share Option
Scheme in the 12 month period up to and including
such further grant must not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which
period no further option shall be granted.

A non-refundable consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by
an eligible person within the date as specified in the
offer letter issued by the Company, being a date not
later than 5 business days from the date on which
the offer is made.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during
a period (which may not expire later than 10 years
from the date of the grant) to be notified by the
Board at its sole discretion.

The subscription price must be at least the higher of
(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant; (2) the average of the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the immediately preceding
five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (3) the nominal value of a Company’s
share.

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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(x)  The Board is entitled at any time within 10 years
between 20 February 2009 and 20 February 2019
to offer the grant of an option to any Qualified
Participants.

No option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 20 February 2009 and during
the financial year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$1,068.6
million (at 31 March 2009: HK$228.0 million), of which
HK$220.15 million has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year. The amount of HK$848.45 million included
the Company’s share premium account and other reserves
which may be distributable provide that immediately
following the date on which the divided is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 2.
The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company
repurchased 10,000,000 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange. Of these repurchased shares, 5,505,000
shares were cancelled on 30 March 2010 and the balance
of 4,495,000 shares were cancelled subsequently on

16 April 2010. Details of the repurchases were as follows:
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Number of shares BREK Aggregate net
Date of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest purchase price
fEE B FrigmE 2RO E B B®1K e EEER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
10 March 2010 118,000 2.80 2.78 329,740.00
—ZT-ZTF=A+AH
11 March 2010 2,304,000 2.84 2.81 6,512,750.00
—ET-TF=A+—H
15 March 2010 494,000 2.99 2.99 1,477,060.00
—E-EF=A+HHA
16 March 2010 1,287,000 3.05 3.02 3,925,080.00
—E-FTF=A+H
18 March 2010 1,302,000 3.20 3.18 4,163,796.00
—ET—-ZETF=A+N\H
26 March 2010 4,000,000 3.40 3.38 13,596,600.00
—E-TF=A-+KH
29 March 2010 296,000 3.45 3.44 1,020,844.80
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The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by
the par value thereof. The premium paid on the purchase
of the shares of HK$30,856,000 has been charged to the
share premium of the Company. An amount equivalent to
the par value of the shares cancelled has been transferred
from the retained profits of the Company to the capital
redemption reserve.

The purchase of the Company’s shares during the year
was effected by the Directors, pursuant to the mandate
from the Shareholders received at the last annual general
meeting, with a view to benefiting the Shareholders as
a whole by enhancing the net asset value per share and
earnings per share of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2010 was there any purchase, sale or
redemption by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of
the Company’s shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the financial year, the Group made no charitable
contributions (financial year 2009: HK$2.1 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio
(appointed on 1 April 2010)

Mr. Chung Wai Man

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze

Mr. Wang Jindong
(appointed on 1 April 2010)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Wu Jie Si

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan

Mr. Guan Huanfei

Mr. Ma Lishan
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In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio and
Mr. Wang Jindong shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Ms. Cheung Mei Sze, Mr. Wu lJie Si
and Mr. Hung Sui Kwan will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

The profiles of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 39 to 51 of the annual
report.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set
out in this report, there is no change in the information
of the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Name of Director Details of changes
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Mr. Liang Guoxing Mr. Liang has been appointed as a director of Fast Boom Holdings Limited,
Silver Base Investment Development Limited, Silver Base Capital Limited, Silver
Base Healthcare Products Investment Company Limited and Silver Base Retail
Management Limited, all are the subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Chung Wai Man
BEXEE
Mr. Wu Jie Si

RERLE

Mr. Guan Huanfei
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Mr. Chung ceased to be the company secretary and authorised representative of
the Company with effect from 1 February 2010.
BREBH_ZT-TF_A-HRETHHERRGANAGAMERKERE -

Mr. Wu has been re-designated as a non-executive director and vice chairman of
China Aoyuan Property Group Limited with effect from 24 December 2009.
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Mr. Guan has been appointed as an executive director and general manager of
BoCommLife Insurance Company Limited in January 2010.
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DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has a service contract with the

Company for a fixed term of three years with

following commencement dates:

Name of Directors

Esgs

EENRBEX
SEFHERAAATIRBEH  AUT

the BHIFMm R =5 :

Commencement Date
=Rt

Mr. Liang Guoxing

2B 85

Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny
PR WL 5 5t

Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio
ARt

Mr. Chung Wai Man
BEXEE

Ms. Cheung Mei Sze
BEXBL+

Mr. Wang Jindong
FTERELE

Mr. Wu Jie Si

RERXLE

Mr. Hung Sui Kwan
3 18 5 A

Mr. Guan Huanfei
BmIER L

Mr. Ma Lishan

EeRvAlID S

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service

contract with the Company which is not determinable

12 September 2007
—EELFNATZH
12 September 2007
—ETEFNATH
1 April 2010
—E-FTFMNHA—H
12 September 2007
—EELFNATZH
6 March 2008
—EENF=HAKAH

1 April 2010
—E-FTFMNHA—H
6 March 2008
—EENF=HAKH

6 March 2008
—EENF=HKH

6 March 2008
—ZEETNF=ZHAKAH
6 March 2008
—ZEENF=ZHAKH

BREERRBFAS LEENESHESR
ARRAFTERRB AR —FERNEIEMBA
EHRRE CRERERIN) WRBEE L -

by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by
the remuneration committee of the Company and are
decided by the Board, as authorised by the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting, having regard to the Group's

EEWE
REBRRRBREFAGNEE  EFH
ERAARAFHEZEECHBROAESS
RE - ETELEAEKENKE EFOR
%o BELKRE  UREEHHR -

results, Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance,

and the then prevailing market conditions.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporations (within the meaning of part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have been taken under
such provisions of the SFO) and the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set up in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules or which were required to be entered in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO were as

follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of

the Company

o NN
Name of Director Number of ordinary shares Type of interests Position ERITREAN
EEnA EERBE W= E R 84 BHABED
Mr. Liang Guoxing 801,000,000 (Note 1) Corporate Long 67.06%
RE Tt 801,000,000 (Ht7#1) yNE] we
Note: o

These shares were beneficially owned by Yinji Investments
Limited, which was 100% owned by Mr. Liang Guoxing. Under
the SFO, Mr. Liang Guoxing was deemed to be interested in such
shares.
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2010, none of
the Director or chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have been taken under
provisions of the SFO) or the Model Code or which were
required to be entered in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Save as disclosed below and under the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executive interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, the Directors
are not aware of any other person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates), who, at 31 March 2010, had an interest or

short position in the shares or underlying shares of the

BREXEBEN RZE-—ZTF=A=+—
B BESFAARAETZTRAEBRAR

AR AR EE (EXREFLRPEEDIE
XVER) D - MR XESFT - BERE
EHr BB EDIEXVERETR8S & (B R
BEEFMAEGKRI L m%ﬁi%&%fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
BHiEm MORR) IR ETRIAMNE A RF

BT EmIORR  HARIEE %&Hﬁifﬂm
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Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company B
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company
L N
Name of Shareholder Number of ordinary shares Capacity Position BRITREAMN
R & EERYE a4 =¥ BREIL
Yinji Investments Limited 801,000,000 (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long 67.06%
801,000,000 (#7:#1) EsHBA iR
Mr. Liang Guoxing 801,000,000 (Note 1) Interest of controlled Long 67.06%
corporation
REEEE 801,000,000 (#/i#1) Nz AE o - e
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Note:

1. These shares were beneficially owned by Yinji Investments
Limited, which was 100% owned by Mr. Liang Guoxing.
Under the SFO, Mr. Liang Guoxing was deemed to be
interested in such shares.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Liang Guoxing, being a beneficial owner of Silver Base
(Holdings) Limited, was interested in the contracts for the
lease of office and staff quarters to the Group. Further
details of the transactions undertaken in connection
therewith are included under the sections headed
“Connected Transactions and Continuing Connected
Transactions” and in note 31 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries

was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, there was no contract of significance
between the Company or its subsidiaries, and a controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the
financial year or at any time during the financial year.
Furthermore, there was no contract of significance for
the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries at the end of the financial year or at any time

during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year had the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, holding companies entered into any
arrangement which enables the exiting Directors or chief
executives to have the right to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or

any other legal entities.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Other than operating a Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and participating in the People’s Republic
of China state-managed retirement benefits scheme, the
Group has not operated any other retirement benefits

schemes for the Group’s employees.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the financial year and up to the date of this report,
no Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in
the Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for around 68.5% and 93.7% of the total
sales and purchases for the financial year, respectively.
The Group's largest customer and supplier accounted for
around 53.5% and 86.5% of the total sales and purchases
for the financial year, respectively.

During the financial year, none of the Directors or any of
their associates or any Shareholders which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As set out in note 31 to the financial statements, during
the financial year, the Group had rental expenses paid
to (i) Silver Base (Holdings) Limited, which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Liang Guoxing and (ii) Mr. Liang Guoxing
amounted to HK$8,628,000 (2009: HK$8,628,000) and
HK$763,000 (2009: HK$753,000), respectively. Details
of the aforesaid transaction have been disclosed in
the section headed "Connected Transactions” of the

Prospectus.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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On 12 March 2010, the Group had entered into (i) two
new tenancy agreements in Hong Kong with Silver Base
(Holdings) Limited for a term of one year commencing
from 1 April 2010 at a monthly rent of HK$239,000
and HK$480,000 respectively and (i) two new tenancy
agreements in the PRC with Mr. Liang Guoxing for a
term of three years commencing from 1 April 2010 at a
monthly rent of RMB57,300 and RMB19,000 respectively.
Details of the aforesaid transactions were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2010
and the transactions will be subject to annual review
requirement pursuant to the Listing Rules in the next

financial year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company established its audit committee (the “Audit

Committee”) in June 2008. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Hung Sui Kwan, Mr. Guan Huanfei and Mr. Ma

Lishan.

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of
references which is in compliance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for the review and supervision of the
financial reporting process and internal control process.
It has reviewed the accounting principles, accounting
standards and methods adopted by the Company together
with the management, discussed the matters concerning
the internal controls, as well as reviewed the Group's

audited annual results for the year ended 31 March 2010.
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CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICE
The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard

of corporate governance practices.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
As at 31 March 2010, the Company has complied with the

applicable code provisions as set out in the Code.

For details of the Corporate Governance Report, please

refer to pages 69 to 82 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct for dealing in securities of the company
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all the
Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code throughout the period from
the date of the Listing of the Company’s shares on the

Stock Exchange and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers them to be independent
of management and free of any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of the independent

judgment.
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N
USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S ARABERLFBEZFERE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING R E
The proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares ARABIRZZEZNFNANBEBRZAE
at the time of its listing on the Stock Exchange in 8 April M MARBRERETHRG ZFEHE
2009, after the deduction of related issuance expenses, KR MABE TR &K /R275BE BT
amounted to approximately HK$927.5 million. These BEE-_ZT—ZTF=A=+— EI.:Z?FM%?K
proceeds were applied up to 31 March 2010 with the DIRBBRERMENEZREMER @ &7
proposed applications set out in the Prospectus, as ERUNNE
follows:
Unutilised as at
31 March 2010
Per Prospectus Utilised R-Z-2%
REARER EEA ZA=+-ANKEA
Contents HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TR FET FER
For business development ERRRE 65.0% 602,875 0.0% - 65.0% 602,875
For the reinforcement & RN RiER
expansion of the B4R GH AR
distribution network in the PRC 24.0% 222,600 0.0% - 24.0% 222,600
For advertising, marketing and BRES - miGHRE
promotion and establising Ress - A RFR
“Silver Base image stores” [REFRIE] 20.0% 185,500 0.0% - 200% 185,500
For the integration and BRERE G IR
consolidation in the PRC RAEHERS
by way of mergers and EHEETES
acquistions and development of ~ KE[E
new product lines 15.0% 139,125 0.0% - 15.0% 139,125
For the expansion of headcount ~ FREEEATF « UK
and purchase/upgrading of the BE/RATEE
Group's existing machinery RERRERE
and equipment 6.0% 55,650 0.0% - 6.0% 55,650
For increasing inventory levels ARREEREE
in Wuliangye Liquor Series AR/
and/or other products ERNEELT 25.0% 231,875 3.8% 35,596 21.2% 196,279
For general working capital RE—heELES 10.0% 92,750 0.0% - 10.0% 92,750
Total @t 100.0% 927,500 3.8% 35,596 96.2% 891,904
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The unutilised balances have been placed with licensed
banks and financial institutions in Hong Kong and PRC as

interest — bearing deposits.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 8 April 2009
on the Stock Exchange. Based on the information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the
date of this report.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liang Guoxing
Chairman

Hong Kong

11 June 2010

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

ARBANGEHREFATERTENFEIERT
K B AERT BFK o

EHNABRFRE

ARFRP K =T TAFEA /B ER XA
£ e REARA AR BRI AT EIG AR
RAEERM RABEAH ARFCH
BEFRAFRENARERE -

B

2K G E A E W AR - TR R TR
AELEREEFZARAEHDERAH B
LINSER Glob S B

REEEE

FE

REHE

B
ZE—ZEFRAT—H



Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) all the time. The
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company believes that good corporate governance
practices and business ethics are essential for achieving
sustainable development, building investors’ confidence
and protecting and enhancing interests of the

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

In pursuit of the good and high standard of corporate
governance practices, the Board reviews the corporate
governance practices of the Company from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of Shareholders
and to comply with the increasing stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in

corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since it was listed on the Stock
Exchange on 8 April 2009. Throughout the review year,
the Company has complied with the code provisions
contained in the Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is in charge of providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Group. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Group. It also decides on matters such
as annual and interim results, connected and major
transactions, Directors’ appointments or re-appointment,
and dividend and accounting policies. The Director’s
profiles of the Company as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 39 to 45 of this annual report.

Corporate Governance Report
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The Board has delegated various responsibilities to
certain Board committees including the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”), the compliance committee
(the

committee (the “"Remuneration Committee”) (collectively,

“Compliance Committee”) and the remuneration

the “Board Committees”) of the Company.
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The Board currently comprises 10 Directors, including
6 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and
3 independent non-executive Directors. The full Board
has met four times during the year under review. The
attendance of each individual Director at the Board and
the Board Committee meetings held in the review year is

set out in the following table:

Corporate Governance Report
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ARREFEHAMB TREFMAK  BEX
BHTEF —BHRATEFTR=2BIUF
HITEFEK - 2REEFXOBEFEANEE
THREH - TR SEFTREEFEL
EXegdNEEZRERRNBERR

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend
BHEZEE AERHEZEE

Audit Remuneration Compliance

Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors EE Exg ENZEEE FHEEE &HZEEE
Executive Directors #11TESE
Mr. Liang Guoxing (Chairman) 2B 8L £ (£ /&) 4/4 N/A RiEF 212 N/A T iE A
Mr. Chen Sing Hung Johnny BRI % 4 & 3/4 N/A @A 2/2 212
Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio (Note) T3 4 4 & (#7:#) 0/0 N/A i F N/A i F N/A 7 F
Mr. Chung Wai Man /& X &4 4/4 N/A T @ A N/A T i@ A N/A T8 R
Ms. Cheung Mei Sze EX B+ 4/4 N/A 73 N/A 7 N/A i A
Mr. Wang lindong (Note) T & 8 5t 4 (#1:#) 0/0 N/A NE A N/A NiE A N/A RiE A
Non-Executive Director ¥ HTEE
Mr. Wu Jie Si BB L& 3/4 N/A i F N/AZ 38 A N/A i A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BY FHTEE
Mr. Hung Sui Kwan 553 % 4 4/4 212 212 212
Mr. Guan Huanfei Bz 3F 5t 4 4/4 22 22 212
Mr. Ma Lishan 5 37 1L 58 4 4/4 2/2 22 212

Note: Mr. Joseph Marian Laurence Ozorio and Mr. Wang
Jindong were appointed as executive Directors on 1 April
2010.
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The Company has adopted the practice to provide relevant
materials to all Directors relating to the matters brought
before the meetings at least 3 days before the meetings
to ensure that they are given sufficient review time. All
the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable request, the
Directors will be able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. An agreed procedure to enable them to do so

was approved by the Board on 25 January 2010.

All Directors have the opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for Board meetings. At least 14-day notice of
Board meeting, via the company secretary, are given to
the Directors and the Board procedures are in compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means
of communication. The company secretary is striving to
update all Directors on the latest development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and maintain good corporate

governance practice.

Each newly appointed Director is offered training on
key areas of business operations of the Group. They
are offered training materials that set out the duties
and responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules,
related ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements
of Hong Kong. The Company also provides professional
development and training courses to the Directors as well
as company secretary to continually update their relevant

skills and knowledge.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other relationships with each other. Each of independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing his
independence with regard to the independence criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and at the date
of this report, the Company still considers them to be

independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The responsibilities and activities of each of the Board

Committees during the review year are as follows:

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal for the external auditors
and has the authority to raise questions regarding the
resignation or dismissal of the auditor and review of the
Group's financial information and oversight of the Group's
financial reporting system, internal control procedures
and risk management frameworks. It is also responsible
for reviewing the interim and final results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed the confirmation
given by Mr. Liang Guoxing and Yinji Investments Limited
of their compliance with the deed of non-competition
undertaking as disclosed in the Prospectus. The written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is in line with
the code provisions as set out in the Code and is available

on the Company website.

Members of the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors including Mr. Hung
Sui Kwan as Chairman, who is a qualified accountant
with extensive experience in financial reporting and
controls, Messrs, Mr. Guan Huanfei, and Mr. Ma Lishan as

members.
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The Audit Committee met twice during the financial year
ended 31 March 2010. During the meetings, the Audit

Committee carried out the following activities:

a)

Reviewed with the external auditors the results of
the annual audit and audited report for the year
ended 31 March 2009 and the interim result for the
six months ended 30 September 2009 together with
senior management’s response to the accounting

issues and major findings in the course of audit;

Reviewed the annual audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company with the external auditor
prior to submission to the Board for approval. The
review was to ensure that the financial statements
and disclosures were in accordance with the
applicable Financial Reporting Standards in Hong
Kong and other relevant legal and regulatory

requirements;

Reviewed the continuing connected transactions (if
any) entered into by the Group to ensure that the
transactions had been conducted on the Group’s
normal commercial terms in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group and that the
terms and annual caps are fair and reasonable and in
the interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a

whole;

Reviewed with the senior management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls,

financial reporting matters of the Group; and

Reviewed the proposed audit fees and terms of
engagement for the external auditors for the
financial year ended 31 March 2010.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited results
for the year ended 31 March 2010 of the Group with
management and the Company’s external auditors and

recommended its adoption by the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy. The written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee is in line with
the Code provisions and is available on the Company

website.

Members of the Remuneration Committee comprise two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Director including Mr. Liang Guoxing as Chairman, Messrs.
Chen Sing Hung Johnny, Hung Sui Kwan, Kwan Huanfei,

and Ma Lishan as members.

In determining emolument payable to the Directors, the
Remuneration Committee would consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, the commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee

carried out the following activities:

a) Approved the bonus to four executive Directors as
reward for their efforts in the successful listing of the

Company;

b) Reviewed and approved the remuneration report
for the Directors and senior management as at June
2009;
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¢)  Reviewed and approved the remuneration adjustment
report for the Directors and senior management for
the financial year 2010/2011;

d)  Reviewed the overall aspects of remuneration policy;

and

e) Approved the remuneration package of the new

executive Directors appointed during the year.

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee is responsible for enhancing
the corporate governance and improvement of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. The written
terms of reference of the Compliance Committee is

available on the Company’s website.

Members of the Compliance Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director including Mr. Hung Sui Kwan as Chairman,
Messrs. Kwan Huanfei, Ma Lishan and Chen Sing Hung

Johnny as members.

During the financial year, the Compliance Committee

conducted the following activities:

a) Reviewed the internal audit plan and procedures;

b)  Reviewed the internal control reports prepared by the
external internal control consultant and compliance
reports together with senior management and make

comments thereon; and

) Reviewed the improvement measures taken by
management to rectify and enhance the internal

control system.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

As the Board is involved in the appointment of new
Directors, the Group has not established a nomination
committee. The Board will take into consideration criteria
such as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment
when considering new Director’s appointment. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate
who is to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director should also meet the independence criteria set

out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

During the financial year, the Company has complied with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of sufficient number of independent
non-executive Director and is having independent non-
executive Director with relevant professional qualifications

or accounting or relating financial management expertise.

All Directors are appointed for a fixed term of three
years. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company.
New Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy during any year are required to retire and submit
themselves for re-election at the first general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire
from office by rotation and not later than the third annual
general meeting since the last re-election or appointment

of such Director.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the standard set
out in the Model Code during the financial year under

review.

On 25 January 2010, the Company has adopted written
guidelines, “"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees”, on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code for securities transactions by relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-

sensitive information of the Company.

The Company has been confirmed by Mr. Liang Guoxing
and Yinji Investments Limited that (i) each of them has
complied with the undertaking contained in the deed
of non-competition undertaking dated 25 March 2009
executed by them in favour of the Group; (ii) each of
them and/or their respective associates is not offered or
becomes aware of any new project or business opportunity
directly or indirectly to engage or becomes interested in
any business carried on by any member of the Group from
time to time or in which any member of the Group is

engaged or has invested or is otherwise involved in.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The posts of Chairman and chief executive officer are
held separately by Mr. Liang Guoxing and Mr. Chen Sing
Hung Johnny. The segregation ensures a clear distinction
between the Chairman’s and the chief executive officer’s
responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible to manage
the Board together with certain business development
functions and overall corporate strategies while the
chief executive officer is responsible for managing the

Company’s daily business operations.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining good
and effective internal controls of the Group. The Company
engaged an external consultant (“Internal Control
Consultant”), which is an independent third party to the
Group, to assess the existing internal control system of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and to advise
on the measures that should be adopted by the Group to
enhance the corporate governance practice and internal
control system. The Board, through the Audit Committee
and Compliance Committee and with the assistance of
Internal Control Consultant has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control,
covering financial, operational, compliance control and risk
management functions for the year ended 31 March 2010.
The Group's system of internal control includes the setting
up of a management structure with limits of authority,
and is designed to help the Group achieve its business
objectives, protects its assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business
objectives. After reviewing the Group’s internal control
system, the Board considers that the internal control
system is effective and adequate for the Group as a whole.
The Board further considers that (i) there was no material
issues relating to the internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions, of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate
staff with appropriate qualifications and experience,
resources for accounting and financial reporting function,
and adequate training programmes and budget have been

provided during the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

Corporate Governance Report

A 5 5 IR el

BB ER A EE

EXRAEABEAEERTAERNAL
B RRRIE R &I EPEER ([NEE
2R HRAKENBELE=ZF) AFTE
AEERBE_T-—ZTF=A=+—HIF
EABANPEEZEGE - I AR ANERE R MNA
m%%i/ﬁﬁﬁﬂw*‘ﬁﬁq i Z FE R EX 80 $E B
REER MRBE-_T-ZTF=A=+—H
IEFE - ﬁ%AELﬂﬁﬁi/\a&/\ﬁi
el AT AR EEFEJZWJEJJT HARE
BAREEERIERIE - EE - AREH R
ﬂﬁgfiﬁﬁ%ﬁuﬁﬁﬁ’\]}ﬂz@(}_ﬁ§§°$%
WA EREEAGEREIREERNEIER
B A ASEERESXERE  REA
EUGREEEDBAREE BREFES
V& ETRCERVE R R SE 0 B 7% & R R 2B 5 AR
S FIENEE 1T - W R & M RBEE KR -
ZEFE AR (B IER L) (RE W A&
BAKRERMSIE.R - WER (BXITEH
BR)AEBSEZRRIAREKREERELBEE
BER NESREENANIEZERSE
EEGRREZNBEERGR A EEERM
?B%ﬁ@l&%@ EFGE—FRE R
BHE_Z-ZF= )EJ T—RIMBER -
()Z'»‘%.EAWH‘% B R ARSI &R
EIREA Hﬁmﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬂaﬂﬁﬁ%&$
H: RINVAEEBAGEERRKEBRHETA
ARG RV BB RBEEFINE R E
e AEEREEHANEIREREH -

bt
B

REE A

R

ot

\
Rl

A Fﬁ
>3]
A 2t



Corporate Governance Report

A 36 B i

The internal audit department of the Company, which
is led by the chief financial officer of the Group, is
responsible for monitoring the internal controls of the
Group and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has
full access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls. All types of audited reports are
circulated to the Audit Committee and key management
which will follow up the corrective actions to the

recommendations by the internal audit department.

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer of the
Group and the internal audit department, is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Company and the Group. In preparation of the financial
statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies and statutory requirements have been consistently

complied with.

The Board aims to present a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the Shareholders, and make appropriate

disclosure and announcement in a timely manner.

DIRECTORS" AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of accounts of each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2010,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and have applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards which are pertinent to its operations
and relevant to the financial statements, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and have

prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements which were prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. A statement by the auditors of the
Group about their reporting responsibilities is set out on

pages 83 to 84 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The Group’s external auditors are Ernst & Young. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the fees paid/
payable to the external auditors in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the auditors to the Group

were as follows:
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For the year
ended 31 March

2010 2009
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LFE IEFE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Audit services Z IR 1,850,000 1,500,000
Reporting accountants in BARNE EHB A

relation to the listing B ¥R 2 5T A AR 5

of the Company - 5,680,000

Non-audit services IEZBRT 1,000,000 -

Total ot 2,850,000 7,180,000
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with Shareholders and
investors in general. The various formal channels via
which the Company communicates with its Shareholders
include interim and annual reports, information on the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s website, and general

meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s
general meetings where the Chairman of the Board and
the Directors are available to answer questions. Separate
resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on
each substantially separate issue. The financial and other
information relating to the Group has been published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)

and the Company (www.silverbasegroup.com).

The Company holds press and analysts conferences
from time to time at which the executive Directors and
senior management of the Group are available to answer
questions regarding the performance of the Group. During
the financial year, the Group held a number of road shows
and meetings with investors in Hong Kong as well as
overseas. To enable the investors and analysts understand
more about our business and products, the Company
organised a number of business events, such as wine

tasting during the financial year.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

HEiREERRRER
$&7ﬁﬂ%¢ KTt B SR R —
BIRAEBE - AR RRARIEBNTH
EREBRERBRELRS - WA
RARDTBUOER L RREAE -

ARACIHBRREFEARTRRAEG EF
SXIREREFACELOZRER EREXRE
F eXEBEERLELBYINEEERRE R
BE o BB B K& E & R IR B
32 B 48 i (www . hkexnews. hk) & 7 X &) 48 uh

(www_silverbasegroup.com)® T & o

ARARAHETRERTEMONE S

MATEERAEEZSREEEENE L
EEAMASERRZER - WRFEA -
AEEEFBIANBINIREERTZ AR
BEMEH - R T REREENOMEEMAA
SENEBMER ARAERRTZERE
e BEMRMBFEEARTHOAES -



Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

Ernst & Young

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2846 9888
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To the shareholders of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Silver
Base Group Holdings Limited set out on pages 85 to
172, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITORS’" RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 June 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

o PF 18 15 £
Year ended 31 March 2010 B2 T —ZTF=A=+—HItFE
2010 2009
—E-EfF —ETNF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
it FET FHET
REVENUE g 2 5 1,319,089 1,252,210
Cost of sales HE B AR (696,041) (625,108)
Gross profit £ 623,048 627,102
Other income and gains H At e A R Yz 5 31,466 5,778
Selling and distribution expenses HE RKHE R (116,982) (74,314)
Administrative expenses THEA (53,046) (54,663)
Other expenses H & M (900) (1,478)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B A1 R 6 483,586 502,425
Income tax expense Fristi & 9 (87,437) (87,303)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE ZAAFEE#EZIEEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEFERHE
THE COMPANY 10 396,149 415,122
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ZAAFEE#EZIFEAA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEESREF
THE COMPANY 12
Basic (HK cents) B (L) 33.18 46.12
* Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 11 to the & R B Z BRI BRI E1IHE -
financial statements.
BEEEERERL T
—E - FEFR



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

& OF 2 WA #
Year ended 31 March 2010 EEZ T —ZTFE=A=+—HItFE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFHE 396,149 415,122
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hia2mb A
Exchange differences on translation MEBINETSFTE £ 8
of foreign operations fEH =5 1,348 3,430
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AAFEBEEDS
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE BEEAELEEE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS 2HEHWAETE
OF THE COMPANY 397,497 418,552

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o OF B 8 1R Ol %
31 March 2010 ZE—ZEF=HA=+—H
2010 2009
—E-Zf —EENEF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
i FEx FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BEKEH 13 8,391 3,900
Investment property REME 14 7,757 7,966
Intangible asset B EE 15 7,400 8,300
Total non-current assets ERMEBEELR 23,548 20,166
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 314,590 189,520
Trade receivables FEWE 5 I8 18 43,282 25,950
Prepayments, deposits and BRRE EEk
other receivables HAth jE U R IB 19 287,873 91,848
Cash and bank balances /e MIR1T 8k 20 977,748 85,844
Total current assets MEBEERR 1,623,493 393,162
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables FEf 8 53R 21 27,072 1,854
Other payables and accruals HihERNHIBEREFAEE 22 39,631 53,318
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFERTEER 23 96,782 53,165
Tax payable e 18 43,732 48,772
Total current liabilities BB ERT 207,217 157,109
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,416,276 236,053
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELAERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,439,824 256,219
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 24 250 =
Total non-current liabilities FnBaERE 250 =
Net assets BEEFE 1,439,574 256,219
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to ordinary KATERERBAA
equity holders of the Company FE4h RE &
Issued capital B BETIRA 25 119,000 380
Reserves fEE 26 1,320,574 255,839
Total equity BmEER 1,439,574 256,219
EEX BR B 55
Chung Wai Man Chen Sing Hung Johnny
EZE EZE
Director Director
REE =R Al
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Year ended 31 March 2010 EE T —ZF=A=+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
5 DF BE 45 52 B %

Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company

FAREERENE RS
Share Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange
premium redemption  surplus fluctuation
Issued  account Capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  Retained Total
capital BB reserve B4 EE HE  profits  equity
BRfTRA  BER AARE REGE BEHORE RBER REARN  BREE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
it Tér TEx  TEx  TEr  TEx  TExr  TAr  Tin
(note 26(a)(i) (note 26(a)(i))
(Firsk262)) (HrsE26(a)i)
At 1 April 2008 RZZE\FNA-A 10,010 = = = 6,367 8543 482,757 507,677
Total comprehensive income ~ £E2EMALE
for the year - - - - - 3430 415122 418,552
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—-FENBAR (10,010) - = = = - - (10,010
Final 2008 dividend declared 2R f}
and paid ZEENERIRE 1" - - - - - - (350,0000  (350,000)
Interim 2009 dividend “ZENERERE 1 - - - = = - (310000 (310,000
Issue of shares ki 250) 380 - (380) - - - - -
Transfer to statutory BREEERBARS
surplus reserve - - - - 9,767 - (9,767) -
At 31 March 2009 and RZZENFZA=1-H
at 1 April 2009 R=EENEMA-A 380 - (380) - 16134 11,973 228112F 256,219
Total comprehensive income ~ £E2EMALE
for the year - - - - - 1348 3%,149 397,497
Interim 2010 dividend “T-TERHRS 11 - - - - = - (170400)  (170,400)
Capitalisation issue v &3 25(0) 89620  (89,620) - - - - - -
Issue of shares Rk 25(d) 30,000 1,005,000 - - - - - 1,035,000
Share issue expenses RihETER - (46,886) - = = = - (46,886)
Repurchase of shares BERH 25(e) (1,0000  (30,856) = 1,000 = = (1,000 (31,856)
Transfer to statutory ERTETRHBLNRES
surplus reserve - - - - 928 - (928) -
At 31 March 2010 RZE-TE=A=1-H 119,000  837,638* (380)* 1,000 17,062* 13321%  451933* 1,439,574
3 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZEREREOREAHMBRAZTANEG

of HK$1,320,574,000 (2009: HK$255,839,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

aHHER R
Year ended 31 March 2010 E T —ZEF=ZA=1+—HILFE
2010 2009
—E-%F —TENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i FERT FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM EETHNRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax G IR 483,586 502,425
Adjustments for: BT EBEMERNAR
Interest income B A (786) (800)
Depreciation e 1,919 1,760
Impairment of intangible asset B EERE 6 900 =
Reversal of write-down of BRMRTFESE
inventories to net realisable value A &35 HE 5 (1,672) (2,422)
483,947 500,963
Increase in inventories FEHEN (123,398) (14,945)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 F A N (17,332) (7,945)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BN FIE - e RHA
deposits and other receivables FE Wk (3E ) /R (196,025) 11,200
Decrease in an amount due from P LT 3% i 3R 0 IR >
a controlling shareholder - 2,709
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables BB S m, Cid) 25,218 (42,088)
Decrease in other payables and Ho Al A 3018 R FE A
accruals aERD (13,687) (51,575)
Cash generated from operations EEMEENIES 158,723 398,319
Interest received B FIE 786 800
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEFEE (81,204) (91,571)
Elsewhere tax paid BT E Ath i [ B 1E (11,023) (21,703)
Net cash flows from operating activities 2 EEBFEHNER S REFH 67,282 285,845
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHNEERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, HEEWE  BEREE
plant and equipment BB 13 (6,205) (2,132)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWE  BER
of property, plant and equipment HAEIAE WS RIE 12 =
Decrease in pledged time deposits B E B 308 - 123,118
Net cash flows from/(used in) BB EEBMRE/ (FTA)
investing activities MRS REFE (6,193) 120,986
RESEEEZEZRERLQA
—E-zaEH




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B ERER
Year ended 31 March 2010 B ZE=ZF—ZEF=A=+—HILFE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTThF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Hi et TET TAET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZHNEETRE
ACTIVITIES
New trust receipt loans it TR E R 96,782 53,165
Repayment of trust receipt loans EEETREER (53,165) (34,632)
Decrease in amounts due to P& — KBS /& A B AT
former minority shareholders DB R R IER
of a subsidiary - (34,405)
Dividends paid BERE 11 (170,400) (660,000)
Proceeds from issue of shares BT D P15 F00E 25(d) 1,035,000 =
Share issue expenses BnEETER (46,886) =
Share repurchased fAEN S0 25(e) (31,856) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) RETBAME(FTA)
financing activities RemEFH 829,475 (675,872)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERBREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,/ (Rd) B8 890,564 (269,041)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHReRREEEY
beginning of year 85,844 351,509
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFHTE (FH)
changes, net 1,340 3,376
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRAESEEYD
AT END OF YEAR 977,748 85,844
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReRBEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BERD AT
Cash and bank balances e RIBITES 977,748 85,844

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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Statement of Financial Position

[ N 3
31 March 2010 ZE—ZEF=HA=+—H
2010 2009
—g-BE _—TTNF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$'000
ok FE T FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN 16 842,114 228,388
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ENFIE - Ze Kk
other receivables H {th & W 308 19 6,500 =
Cash and bank balances e RIBITES 20 339,065 -
Total current assets MENEEBRE 345,565 =
CURRENT LIABILITIES i R=Ri
Other payables and accruals H A JE A< 5RIE KRB AT
=K1 22 32 =
Total current liabilities mEBEEEE 32 =
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 345,533 =
Net assets BEFE 1,187,647 228,388
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEBITRA 25 119,000 380
Reserves ] 26 1,068,647 228,008
Total equity 7 % HA R 1,187,647 228,388
EEX BR B 5
Chung Wai Man Chen Sing Hung Johnny
EZE EE
Director Director
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2010 —_ZE—Z2F=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Silver Base Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)

was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
12 September 2007. The registered office of the
Company is located at the office of Codan Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is located at 27th Floor,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 8 April 2009 (the “Listing”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the distribution of Wuliangye (FE#&) Liquor
Series, other liquor products, red wine and Chinese
cigarettes. Details of the principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial

statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Yinji Investments Limited (“Yinji
Investments”), which was incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND

PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA™), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the Listing, the Company
became the holding company of the Group on 26
September 2008. As a result of the Reorganisation
which involved companies under common control,
the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2009 had been prepared in
accordance with the principles of merger accounting
as set out in Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations’’
issued by the HKICPA as if the Company had been
the holding company of its subsidiaries throughout
the year ended 31 March 2009.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1

2.2

—EHE=-_A=+—H

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2010. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All income,
expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and intercompany
balances within the Group are eliminated on

consolidation in full.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current

year's financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment - Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 Amendment* Amendment to HKFRS 8 Operating

Segments - Disclosure of information
about segment assets (early adopted)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 18 Amendment* Amendment to Appendix to HKAS 18
Revenue - Determining whether an
entity is acting as a principal or as

an agent

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
HKAS 39 Amendments Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
(adopted from 1 July 2009)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

(October 2008)**

* Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued
in May 2009).

**  The Group adopted all the Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in October 2008 except for the amendments
to HKFRS 5 Non-current assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary, which is effective from annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding
the impact of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised), the

adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had

no significant financial effect on these financial

statements and there have been no significant

changes to the accounting policies applied in these

financial statements.

(a)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments,
based on information about the components
of the entity that is available to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes
of allocating resources to the segments and
assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about
the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s
major customers. The Group concluded that the
operating segments determined in accordance
with HKFRS 8 are the same as the business
segments previously identified under HKAS 14.
These revised disclosures, including the related
revised comparative information, are shown in

note 4 to the financial statements.

The Group has early adopted in these financial
statements the Amendment to HKFRS 8 issued
in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which clarifies
that segment assets need only to be reported
when those assets are included in measures
that are used by the chief operating decision

maker.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of
Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the
presentation and disclosures of financial
statements. The revised standard separates
owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with all
non-owner changes in equity presented as a
single line. In addition, this standard introduces
the statement of comprehensive income, with
all items of income and expense recognised
in the income statement, together with all
other items of recognised income and expense
recognised directly in equity, either in one
single statement, or in two linked statements.
The Group has elected to present two

statements.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 Amendments

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards '
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional

Exemptions for First-time Adopters 2

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards - Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters *

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment - Group Cash-settled

Share-based Payment Transactions 2

Business Combinations '

Financial Instruments ®

Related Party Disclosures ®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements '

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation -
Classification of Rights Issues

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items '

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding

Requirement ®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to

Owners '

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments *

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
HKFRS 5 included
in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations - Plan to sell the

controlling interest in a subsidiary '

October 2008

HK Interpretation 4 Leases - Determination of the Length of
(Revised in Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
December 2009) Land Leases ?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
while the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKAS 1, HKAS
7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS 39 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
although there are separate transitional provisions

for each standard or interpretation.

In addition, the HKICPA has also issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out
a collection of amendments to HKFRSs. Unless
otherwise specified, the amendments contained
in Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011,
although the Group is permitted to adopt them

earlier.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

—_

July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

G Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and

financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly or

indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHEBE (8)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures BEMXE

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual BELERBBENMLHEKRINE
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties B 2P AEEREMEFNEEED
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture HERANERET SELEER—E
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and BUEBRKE MEPRERRAME
the other parties have an interest. FHEE M o

The joint venture agreement between the venturers BEMERFIUNEEMEBRTEE
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint ERHLERE CEABEBNHRRES
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture BhELEREESRNELE - 6&D
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised XEENFEREBARFSREEND
upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the EEBEES T REFEESEAMEERL
joint venture's operations and any distributions of Pl iZRE B @M IRRETE

surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,

or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture

agreement.
A joint venture is treated as a subsidiary if the it 45 7N X B B 4 ok Fl 3 b B8 75 D % bl —
Company has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, REBRHE  AZEELEWRAWES
over the joint venture. UNETIE
Impairment of non-financial assets EEREERIE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when EARENREE AEEEFTZET
annual impairment testing for an asset is required FEREAR(FE eREERKE
(other than inventories, financial assets and an MERIN) - Bl EEtZEER A 1D
investment property), the asset’s recoverable amount R - BEMNAKEEEAEERNE
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the SHReBEUNEREBERARATER
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value BEEXANRSE  WRENEEE
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is T RIFEELTELERSEA - AR
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset ARRE BN EMEEREER -
does not generate cash inflows that are largely RUtIER ARl esEAREEMBRN
independent of those from other assets or groups EERSBMNERE -
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERETHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it

arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the income

statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or its holding company;

the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual

referred to in (b) or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERETHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The estimated useful lives used for this

purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among

the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains
or losses on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset.

Investment property

Investment property is an interest in land and
building held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such property is stated at cost including
transaction costs less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and is depreciated on
the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the

property over its estimated useful life of 50 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERETHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment property (continued)

The carrying value of an investment property
is reviewed for impairment either annually, or
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable, whichever is earlier. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amounts,
the investment property is written down to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the income statement. An assessment
is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of the investment
property is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that investment property, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
investment property in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement

in the period in which it arises.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite

to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under operating leases are
credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BERETHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,

plus directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank

balances, deposits, and trade and other receivables.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in finance income in the
income statement. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the income statement in other

operating expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset

have expired,;

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of

impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is

the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Interest income continues to
be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when

there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income

statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39
are classified as loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities

at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
and other payables and interest-bearing bank

borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation

is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories represent merchandise and packaging
materials purchased for resale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of

the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which

are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in the income statement.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside the
income statement is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit

or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the

following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETHBRME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) Wz R (48)
(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the (0 FIBUA » G ELEFHERF
effective interest method by applying the rate BEmem T AEMTERAIERASE
that exactly discounts the estimated future PR &R HAIRE (EA) & hEt R
cash receipts through the expected life of the RIS WAEBURESHMEE
financial instrument or a shorter period, when MEEMFEMNFEGFE &

appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset; and

(d) Income from a supplier related to compensation (d RE—HHEREASASEETT
of the Group’s relevant promotional activities, RS 2 mEMNRA - TR
when received. W R FE R ©

Employee benefits & B 1& A

Paid leave carried forward B BRA A2

The Group provides paid annual leave to its EEBEREBEREAN  EEFEENRRE

employees under their employment contracts on a BERMEFFREN EETER B

calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances, HESEREHREAR BHBRGALE

such leave which remains untaken at the end of the BT —EAFE REEHRBLEES
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward EFEANEGREE  BH BRI 2EHR
and utilised by the respective employees in the REFTKAE SR -

following year. An accrual is made at the end of the
reporting period for the expected future cost of such
paid leave earned during the year by the employees

and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 EREABERBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued) EERAM (&)
Pension schemes and other retirement benefits R 5T E R A MR K5 F
The Group operates a defined contribution AEEREERRHEBERTECES
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme EERERHIEABESFEEHILER
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident TE fE3R58 Hil 1 A TE S R INEFET &) (58
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees HlERTEREE]) - HADERNEER
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme AERF e B H K& MR8 R0 1
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based NERFTERBNEBRZRRINE o 8 Hl1E
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries AR ERNZER-FEENAERH
and are charged to the income statement as they tmEESFHERRE  WH—EEIEEN
become payable in accordance with the rules of EoRFE - AREMNEEERN M AT
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme MABEeFEZNREEEE TEREAM
are held separately from those of the Group in B o

an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees

when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which AREEEHEAENMBEAREIAER
operate in Mainland China are required to participate T — B 7 BT E R R RIR RS 5T
in a central pension scheme operated by the local g o ZENBAR GRS CERZED
municipal government. These subsidiaries are LA T R R A E o B R RIRK S
required to contribute a certain percentage of their TEMEBIFT N 2 B I ABR K
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The oo

contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules

of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 BEREFTHEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. All differences
are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at

the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in

the income statement.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected

in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present

value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are discussed below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable

value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
is made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment of
the write-down amount requires management’s
estimates and judgements. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
down/write-back of inventories in the period in

which such estimate has been changed.

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group
has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in
the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected
physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use
of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar way.
Additional depreciation will be made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are different from the
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed, at each financial year end date based

on changes in circumstances.

Notes to Financial Statements

St 85 i 7 W Gk

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

B RS R A ()

fAEt TR = (&)
W7 R = A B FE

WRFEEAZRFEDNREFERE
REMBFAIZRFEFEL - FHERRE
BHEEEHEEFEL A RHE - BRK
ERGERAIRRANMGE - EHER
HRZEHFHREINBARMPEFTE
B BR T B R 17 B O MOR, B -

Y& - B E K AR 1Y AT (8 F AR
E
RETEWR  BER&KEHERE O ER
FHEERER  AREFEERZER
= MAEAENESNNE  KAHE
EMRHERIMBEOTHHRMESL
MM B  RHRNEE®R
BHNBEERRRER BEMNEER
BENEREEREERIEMBLRS -
EAEENERAFHE  EERAEE
AR OLT N ERBRUE ER LR - WY
X BELRBREMNMGHERFH
R/ REEA R ARG - EEE
HEIMNTE - ERFHRRBREOR SR
BREEFHEARRBRBEANEERS -

REE A

R

A Fﬁ
>3]
A 2t

B
B




Notes to Financial Statements

S 385 ¥k e Bt sk

31 March 2010 —_ZE—Z2F=A=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of trade receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a trade receivable is impaired. To determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors including, inter alia, the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtors and default or significant delay in payments.
The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss
arising from the inability of its debtors to make the
required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances,
debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of its debtors
was to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss
might be higher than expected, the Group would be
required to revise the basis of making the allowance.

Further details are included in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments

as follows:

(i)  the distribution of Wuliangye liquor series and

other liquor products (“Liquors”);

(i) the distribution of Chinese cigarettes

("Cigarettes”); and

(iii) the investment in a residential apartment
for its potential rental income (”“Property

investment”).

Management monitors the results of the Group’'s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income and unallocated gains are

excluded from such measurement.

4.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDHEFR (F)
(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2010 HE_Z—ZEF=A=+t—HLEFE
Property
Liquors Cigarettes investment Total
i B5E MERE a5t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: P EULE
Sales to external customers (HEZEINHTF 1,264,310 54,779 - 1,319,089
Other revenue H Ath U 2= = = 42 42
Total = 1,264,310 54,779 42 1,319,131
Segment results DEEE 475,931 7,026 (222) 482,735
Reconciliation: HER -
Interest income B U A 786
Unallocated gains R 5 B Wz 65
Profit before tax B 25 B A B 483,586
Other segment Hitp HEHR :
information:
Depreciation e 1,671 39 209 1,919
Capital expenditure* BAR H* 6,037 168 = 6,205
Reversal of write-down BEO#MRTER
of inventories to net A &35 %8
realisable value - (1,672) - (1,672)
S Capital expenditure consists of additions to items of E BEATHBEYE BEMREEB

property, plant and equipment.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEDIHER ()
(continued)
Year ended 31 March 2009 BE_ZEZTNF=B=1t—HLFE
Property
Liquors Cigarettes investment Total
i B5E MERE a5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TAET FTAET TAET

Segment revenue: P EULE
Sales to external customers (HEZEINHTF 1,182,633 69,577 - 1,252,210
Other revenue H Ath U 2= = = 42 42
Total = 1,182,633 69,577 42 1,252,252
Segment results DEEE 493,199 8,578 (167) 501,610
Reconciliation: HER -
Interest income B U A 800
Unallocated gains R 5 B Wz 15
Profit before tax B 25 B A B 502,425
Other segment Hitp HEHR :

information:
Depreciation e 1,508 43 209 1,760
Capital expenditure* N 2,122 10 = 2,132
Reversal of write-down B LR T E

of inventories to net EA IR FE

realisable value - (2,422) - (2,422)
e Capital expenditure consists of additions to items of & BEASTHBREYE BELEHEEB

property, plant and equipment. ZIRNE °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RBREDIER (E)
(continued)
Geographical information it [@ &
South-east
Mainland Asian
Hong Kong China  countries Others Total

& HEHAER REZEX Hit G
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_Z-ZF§

ZA=t-RALEE
(a) Revenue from external (a) REIIBEFZ
customers* Y s+
Sales to external customers HERIBEP 723,397 582,818 9,010 3,864 1,319,089
Other revenue H b 25 42 = = = 42
Total A 723,439 582,818 9,010 3,864 1,319,131
(b) Non-current assets** (b) FEREBEE* 21,218 2,330 = = 23,548

Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZENE

ZA=t-BL%FE
(a) Revenue from external (a) REIIMEBEFZ
customers* Yz
Sales to external customers HERIBEP 819,499 424,244 8,467 - 1,252,210
Other revenue H i zs 42 = = = 42
Total A 819,541 424,244 8,467 - 1,252,252
(b) Non-current assets** (b) FERBEE* 17,206 2,960 = = 20,166
* The revenue information is based on the location of * W BRI ZIBERERMAEmES o
the customers.
**  The non-current assets information is based on the xx  JEEEEEMEN ERBEEERAEH
location of the assets. mEH -

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$706,308,000 (2009:
HK$687,169,000) was derived from sales by the
Liquors segment and the Cigarettes segment to a
single customer, including sales to two entities which
are known to be under common control with that

customer.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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REpHER ()

El—R2EXEEFPHNER
#7706,308,000 L (Z T Z S F -
687,169,000/ 7T ) Bz = 2K BB 9 &
RERSBH —BE-—FFHNHE (B
FERAmEER(MEEAEBEESXE
ZBEPIEARIES)OHEE)

s~ AR WS
Was (FAREBENEEHE) HERER
HBERESFNGRNEENEET
=

H AR KE T :

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$' 000

FTER FHEIT

Bank interest income RITH B WA 786 800

Gross rental income mE WA 42 42

Income from a supplier FEHERZBA 27,662 =

Foreign exchange differences, net INE =R - RE 1,239 2,499
Reversal of write-down of BOMREEE

inventories to net realisable Al IR R (E

value 1,672 2,422

Others Hh 65 15

31,466 5,778

REE A

R

A Fﬁ
>3]
A 2t

M
o
S
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FR¥EAIR
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after NE B R AT ADE 2 HER -
charging:
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Bt it FTERT FAET
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 696,041 625,108
Depreciation: E
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - B E & &XE 13 1,710 1,551
Investment property WA 14 209 209
1,919 1,760
Impairment of intangible asset* & ERE* 15 900 =
Minimum lease payments BEEEHENRE
under operating leases HE R 15,319 13,023
Auditors’ remuneration ZER M & 1,850 1,500
Employee benefit expense BERNER (B
(including directors’ EF5Me (MFE7)) -
remuneration (note 7)):
Wages and salaries IERE® 79,427 46,418
Pension scheme contributions RRERETEIHR 1,457 1,900
80,884 48,318
Direct operating expenses AR EmE
(including repairs and FIEERNEEEE
maintenance) arising on B (BREEEREE)
rental-earning investment
property 55 41
* The impairment of intangible asset for the year is * FAETEAERBECHASHBRER
included in “Other expense” in the consolidated ZITHEMERIA -

income statement.
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Notes to Financial Statements

Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

St 85 i 3 W Gk
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7. EEME
REEABAXSMARARES LD
RA(TEDRED) REERRGOE

BRAETRENFRAEZTMEWOT :

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHT FATT
Fees e 1,530 =
Other emoluments: HEAab i -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RMEEYAN R
in kind 33,245 25,280
Discretionary bonuses 15T AL 10,800 =
Pension scheme contributions RIREFIET B K 48 48
44,093 25,328
45,623 25,328
BREEEBEREBER 2T
2 - FF R
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 7. EEME ()
(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) WY IEHITES
The fees and salaries paid to independent RFEENTEBIFATESTOH
non-executive directors during the year were as ERFm2OT
follows:
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind Total
Fees ¥ & - B remuneration
ik EEYR = < 4%
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TETT FATT FET
2010 —E-=F
Hung Sui Kwan ST 3 353 - 353
Guan Huanfei #% IE 353 = 353
Ma Lishan =SVl 353 = 353
1,059 - 1,059
2009 —EENE
Hung Sui Kwan ST 3 - 300 300
Guan Huanfei B% IE - 300 300
Ma Lishan =SVl - 300 300
- 900 900

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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7.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

(continued)

(b) Executive directors and a
non-executive director

Notes to Financial Statements
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7. EBME (&)

(b) ATTESNMIERTES

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
in kind Discretionary contributions Total

Fees ¥& 2H bonuses RHKEF remuneration
e REHAE M FEfR WewE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FAT FEL TEL THL FHL

2010

Executive directors:
Liang Guoxing (i)
Chen Sing Hung Johnny
Chung Wai Man
Cheung Mei Sze

Non-executive director:
Wu Jie Si

2009

Executive directors:
Liang Guoxing (i)
Chen Sing Hung Johnny
Chung Wai Man
Cheung Mei Sze

Non-executive director:
Wu Jie Si

—g-%%

YIES:
RELE()
EEX
EXR

FHTES:

niER

“ERNF

HIES:
RELE()
EEX
EXR

FNTES:

HiER

- 26,760 8,000 12 34,172
- 3,088 1,000 12 4,100
- 2,367 1,000 12 3,379
- 1,030 800 12 1,842
- 33,245 10,800 48 44,093

471 - - - 471

4 33,245 10,800 48 44,564
- 20,760 - 12 20,772
- 1,575 - 12 1,587
- 1,208 - 12 1,220
- 537 - 12 549
- 24,080 - 48 24,128
- 300 - - 300
- 24,380 - 48 24,428

REEEZRAERD T
—E-TEEH
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEME (E)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and a by MITESENIERITES (B)
non-executive director (continued)
Note: M3 -
() The remuneration of Mr Liang Guoxing (“Mr () REEEA(REEDEZEZ
Liang”) for the year ended 31 March 2010 Z-EBFE=A=+—HILFE
included housing benefit with aggregate e ERAEEZNNERE
rentals of HK$5,760,000 (2009: HK$5,760,000) AL 7 & & 35,760,000 7T
paid by the Group. (ZZZTNF :5,760,00087L) °
There was no arrangement under which a director FANEEENESREREEAME
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B HE ©
the year.
8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. hAlummEFMMES
The five highest paid employees during the year FRNhfuUESFHMNEESRNA (=
included four (2009: three) directors, details of TZENF  ZR)EF BEANMNEF
whose remuneration are set out in note 7 above. BEREXHE7 - FRHT R (ZF
Details of the remuneration of the remaining one ZThE  WMB)IFESFHTEE R
(2009: two) non-director, highest paid employee for SFBHOT
the year are as follows:
Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FExT FAET
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEKEYN =
in kind 3,090 3,261
Pension scheme contributions RIRFEFIET B3R 12 24
3,102 3,285

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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31 March 2010 ZE—ZEF=H=+—H
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8. hfummFMHES (&)
(continued)
The number of non-director, highest paid employees MeBATEE s AR IEE
whose remuneration fell within the following bands EEBHENT :
is as follows:

Number of employees
EEHE
2010 2009
—2-¥F “TTNF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 JT £3,000,0007% 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,000/%8 7T 1 -
1 2
INCOME TAX 9. FrEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate BBNEFBDRBENRNBEBEENG
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable SHERBAEIZ16.5% (ZTEENF ¢
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes 16.5% ) B9 A5 BB - M Efhit =
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated MERBAN B R ARE S ERENT
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in EREEMIBITHERGAERIE -

which the Group operates.

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER FHEIT
Group: rER :
Current — Hong Kong AEI—FB
Charge for the year FNEHR 57,968 72,112
Underprovision/(overprovision) BAREFEBHETIR
in prior years (ERER B E) 222 (2,518)
Current — Elsewhere INHR— A fth b [R 28,997 17,709
Deferred (note 24) IR FE (Fff5E24) 250 =
Total tax charge for the year FAFIEE AR 87,437 87,303
RESEEEZEZRERLQA
T - FF R
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9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FrEH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable BEARARE RERIBHIB A B A
to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the TERLARE R KA E M Rt E BRI AT A
jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority HRRIEE AR ERB R ENRIE
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at BERMEE FBOT :
the effective tax rate is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F e S
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FER FHET
Profit before tax R 15 BT A 483,586 502,425
Tax at the statutory tax rate BAEMEXFAENTIA 79,792 82,900
Difference in tax rates enacted by HWEERBEMNTEER
local authorities 4,887 1,865
Adjustments in respect of current tax BT EAREME B IE
of previous periods 1B B 78 B 222 (2,518)
Income not subject to tax BARB AU A (482) (488)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAMHR A A R & A 2,543 4,447
Tax losses not recognised RERBO TS E R 475 1,097
Tax charge at the effective rate RERBEFENHIEEHR 87,437 87,303
10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 10. AR EBRAFBEARESF
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF )
THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary HE-_Z—ZF=-A=T—HILFE
equity holders of the Company for the year ended ARRERERTE ARMGE ORI
31 March 2010 includes a profit of HK$173,401,000 FBRRERAR G IS IRE R E A

(2009: HK$308,800,000) which has been dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company (note
26(b)).

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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DIVIDENDS 1. RE
2010 2009
—B-BF —ETNF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FERT THETT
Dividend paid during the year: FRNBRMNZKRE
Final in respect of the financial BRABE_ZTZTNF=H
year ended 31 March 2008 =+—HLEWERFEZ
- HK$175,000,000 RERE —FRE B
per ordinary share 175,000,000/ T - 350,000
Interim — HK$0.142 (2009: RHEIR B — R E B R
HK$81.58) per ordinary share 0. 12BT(ZTENF -
81.58% L) 170,400 310,000
170,400 660,000
Proposed final: BEAHRE
Final — HK$0.185 (2009: Nil) RPAKE —FRE B
per ordinary share 0.185BL (ZZEZT NF : &) 220,150 -
The proposed final dividend for the year ended HE-_Z—ZF=-A=T—HLFEZ
31 March 2010 is subject to the approval of the ERAHINR BB AR A R A FE fE A%
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual REFAS FHEET - APEHRERL
general meeting. These financial statements do not I Bl AN R AR R -
reflect the final dividend payable.
RESEEERER XA
—E-ZTFFR
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$396,149,000 (2009: HK$415,122,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,193,936,000 (2009: 900,000,000) in issue during
the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used to calculate the basic earnings per share
amount for the year ended 31 March 2010 has taken
into account 3,800,000 ordinary shares in issue,
896,200,000 ordinary shares issued during the year
pursuant to the capitalisation issue as if the shares
had been in issue throughout the year ended 31
March 2010, 300,000,000 ordinary shares issued
during the year in connection with the Listing and
10,000,000 ordinary shares repurchased during the

year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used to calculate the basic earnings per share
amount for the year ended 31 March 2009 was
900,000,000 ordinary shares issued and issuable,
comprising 3,800,000 ordinary shares in issue and
896,200,000 ordinary shares to be issued pursuant
to the capitalisation issue as if the shares had been in

issue throughout the year ended 31 March 2009.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
March 2010 and 2009 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in

issue during these two years.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

12. A PREBEGEEAEES

gz %U

BREABANESEIRFARRAE
BEDFEA ARG FIE396,149,000
BIL(ZEZENEF  415,122,000%8
L) RFEAB BETERRKREINETH
£1,193,936,000 R (ZTZT N F :
900,000,000/%) 5+ & -

ARSTEBZE-_T—ZTF=A=+—8H
ﬁﬁﬁtﬂxﬁwﬁfr@%ﬁm 3 A% N
REF ¥ 8B 5+ %3,800,000/% B 31T &
Bk REBEREBEITERFERNEITH
896,200,000% % 5@ A% (A% F AR 7
BHE-_T—THF=-A=t+—ALEZAF
EE&ET) RETMARFRNEITH
300,000,000% & 3 A% - LA KR Y F N BB
[E] /910,000,0000% X 3BAZ °

ARAEEE_ZTETENF=A=+—H
IHEFEEBRERBN S EL T B INE
15 2 4900,000,0008% B %17 & i F
TR E @ AR - H B 453,800,0004%
EETEARRBREENMEETHETE
77#9896,200,000% & i A% (% 40 7% 5 1%
NREE-TTAF=A=1+—AItE
BEEDLET) ©

HRAEEEHE—_T-—FTER_FF
hiiﬂiwL*Eiﬂ:iJ#ﬂE?ﬁﬁ}aE%E
BYE 0B TEAR Rl ERE
BMBHMEFER2INZERERR
MEBIELHE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME-RMENEE

Group VIS
Furniture
Leasehold  and fixtures Office Motor
improvements HHER  equipment vehicles Total
HENELE BEZE WOERE RE &t
HK$ 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
T TR T T T
31 March 2010 “2-BF=R=1-H
At 31 March 2009 and R-EFNFZA=+-RHR
at 1 April 2009: RZZZNFMA—H
Cost KA 1,773 6,253 2,335 8,303 18,664
Accumulated depreciation 2iTE (973) (6,174) (1,682) (5,935) (14,764)
Net carrying amount REFE 800 79 653 2,368 3,900
At 1 April 2009, net of RZZEENEMA—R
accumulated depreciation Mk RiH T E 800 79 653 2,368 3,900
Additions RE 808 721 589 4,087 6,205
Disposals e - = (12) = (12)
Depreciation provided during ENITERE
the year (499) (50) (284) (877) (1,710)
Exchange realignment EXAE 2 = 1 5 8
At 31 March 2010, net of WZE-SF=fA=+-H"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2HFE 1,111 750 947 5,583 8,391
At 31 March 2010: R-_E-ZF=A=1+—-H:
Cost KA 2,587 6,974 2,907 11,633 24,101
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (1,476) (6,224) (1,960) (6,050) (15,710)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,111 750 947 5,583 8,391
REEEERAERLA
- T — T F F R
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - MEKFE (E)
(continued)
Group (continued) NEE (8)
Furniture
Leasehold  and fixtures Office Motor
improvements HME  equipment vehicles Total
RENEEE BERE BAERHE RE Shr
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FiL TEx TiEL Fix TEL
31 March 2009 ZEEHRE=R=1-H
At 1 April 2008: RZEE\EMA—-R :
Cost A 1,185 6,205 2,191 6,865 16,446
Accumulated depreciation Rt & (567) (6,151) (1,419) (5,044) (13,181)
Net carrying amount EEFE 618 54 772 1,821 3,265
At 1 April 2008, net of RZZZ\FHA-R -
accumulated depreciation Nk 25t E 618 54 mn 1,821 3,265
Additions RE 557 48 124 1,403 2,132
Depreciation provided FERTERE
during the year (391) (23) (255) (882) (1,551)
Exchange realignment ERRE 16 - 12 26 54
At 31 March 2009, net of R-EENE=F=1t—H"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2:HE 800 79 653 2,368 3,900
At 31 March 2009; R-EEAF=F=1—H:
Cost A 1,773 6,253 2,335 8,303 18,664
Accumulated depreciation 2itihE (973) (6,174) (1,682) (5,935) (14,764)
Net carrying amount REFE 800 79 653 2,368 3,900
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Notes to Financial Statements
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14. REYZ

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT FHE T
Carrying amount at 1 April RO HA—B8REE 7,966 8,175
Depreciation provided during the year FAMERE (209) (209)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=ZA=+—BmMEREE 7,757 7,966
Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—BHAFEE 12,550 9,890

The Group's investment property is held under a long

term lease and situated in Hong Kong.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on
31 March 2010 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers,
at HK$12,550,000 (2009: HK$9,890,000) on an
open market, existing use basis. The investment
property is leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included

in note 29(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2010, the Group’s investment property
with a carrying value of HK$7,757,000 (2009:
HK$7,966,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 23).

AEBNREMELREE  IRER
HHEERH -

AEENKREMER-_T—TF=A
=T -HE&BIEESERGEMBRE
HEENEERARAFRARMISE
FRZAEEHHEER12,550,00008
T (ZET A F : 9,890,000 L) ° %
BREAMECRBELERELRETFE=
7o BE—SHBEHEHER AN BRE
Bt 3E29(a) °

R-ZTE—ZTF=ZA=+—8 A&EH
BRE{E7,757,0008 T (Z 2T N F -
7,966,000 7T) MK EMELERE
B UAERETASEN —RRITHE
(Ff7E23) °

oo

REEE G

R

(152
o=
XA
A

o

]
\
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15.

16.

—EHE=-_A=+—H
INTANGIBLE ASSET

15. BILEE

Group
TEE
Club
membership
EES
HK$' 000
FA&ET
Cost at 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 RZZFZENFNA—H -  ZEThF
and 1 April 2009, net of —A=+—HERZZEZTNF
accumulated impairment MA—HZKA k25T RE 8,300
Impairment during the year FARE (900)
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=A=+—H 7,400
At 31 March 2010: R-ZE—ZF=A=+—80:
Cost BN 8,300
Accumulated impairment E25HRE (900)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,400
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. R B AR DS
Company
PN
2010 2009
—E—-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FExT FAETT
Unlisted shares, at cost JELETIR - AR E 229,588 229,588
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U B /BB A R FRE 635,749 =
Amount due to a subsidiary & 15 BT /B A &) FRIA (23,223) (1,200)
842,114 228,388
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are FEUR, (FEART) BB A R FUBE A& -
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of R ENRERETEERHAR

repayment.
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

31 March 2010 =&
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16. RITB QT HIER ()

HEBRARENT :

Nominal value
of issued Percentage of
Place of ordinary share/  equity attributable
incorporation/ registered  to the Company
registration paid-up capital Direct Indirect
and operations ERTEER/ AT ES
Name EMKL/ BEMmaR REBIL Principal activities
£ A RS EXmHE HE B TEER
Richmind International Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
ERERBRAA Hong Kong (Ey RAEER
EREAEE/BE
Silver Base International Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 International distribution
Development Company Limited Bk 2B of liquor and cigarette
REARERBRAA products
BB S @B B m
Silver Base Tobacco Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Distribution of cigarettes
REBZERAA i 10,000,0007% 7 RHEE
Silver Base Trading and People’s Republic US$36,450,000 - 100 Distribution of liquor
Development (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.* of China (“PRC") 36,450,000 7T products in the PRC
REEHER (R BRAF PEARLME market
(M El) WA B8 HEER
Silver Base Wine & Spirit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Distribution of Dimple
REFBERAA B8 10,0005 7T Scotch Whisky
BEFEHFRRA LR
Silver Base Wine & Spirit PRC HK$113,600,000 - 100  Distribution of Dimple
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd.* e 113,600,000/ 7T Scotch Whisky and
REFERIDBRRA red wine in the PRC
market
RABEHREHRH
Bt R RAE
BEEEBZRAERLD A
T T FFR
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. KB ARz ()
Nominal value
of issued Percentage of
Place of ordinary share/  equity attributable
incorporation/ registered  to the Company
registration paid-up capital Direct Indirect
and operations BOLER/ KATELS
Name FMEEL/ EaEmAR RETDL Principal activities
a8 MRS E Y EXEE B Mg  TEEE
Silver Base Investment Hong Kong HKS$ 1 - 100 Trading of red wine
Development Limited B BT AN
REREERAEBNRA
Silver Base Healthcare Products Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Inactive
Investment Company Ltd. Bk 1T BEER
REREMREBRRA
Silver Base Capital Ltd. Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Inactive
REEAERAA B 1R BETER
Fast Boom Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment holding
ARERARA Hong Kong E5 REZR
EERAEE/BA
& Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under e BEPBEEEFMAIEBEERE -
the PRC law.
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—B-BF —ZTTNF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
THR FHT
Merchandise & m 293,462 168,459
Packaging materials BEMH 21,128 21,061
314,590 189,520

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
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18. EWRE 5 Fh18

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
Trade receivables & W & 5 I8 43,282 25,950

The Group normally allows a credit period of not
more than 90 days to its customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. Over 80% (2009: 90%)
of the balance represented receivables from 5
customers. Trade receivables are non-interest-

bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

AEE-—RAZTFREETZR0H K
EEH - AEBEE ) HAREE UK
HRFBRBES - SREEESEHE
Bl HA & 8k - HBBB0% (ZTENF -
90%) ZHEHBREBWALTF ZRHE -
BB ZRIETENE

RBEEHRNERE HHRBREZEH
HBRER DTN T -

Group

AEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FET FAB T
Within 2 months & A A 38,618 23,730
2 to 6 months —ENEA 4,596 1,924
6 months to 1 year NEARZE—F 7 61
Over 1 year —FE 61 235
43,282 25,950
RESEEEZEZRERLQA
SE-REFH
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Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

relate to a number of diversified customers for whom

there was no recent history of default.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. B E 5 F1E (&)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade BWE S RERREREEEHNT
receivables are as follows:
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FET T T
At 1 April R A— A - 815
Amount written off as uncollectible i SH A A W [B] Y R IE - (815)
At 31 March R=R=+—H - -
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are WARE BERENEWE S FIBHRE
not considered to be impaired is as follows: DT
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZZTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT T T
Neither past due nor impaired RBH AR BE 42,857 25,528
Less than 60 days past due BiAHE K608 357 126
Over 60 days past due B iR HA#EE60H 68 296
43,282 25,950

ARIEER R R R (B B FE YR TR B — L T
HERTHENRETATFLAM -



18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

19.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other

credit enhancements over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

Notes to Financial Statements
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18. BIWE 5 7R (&)

B 18 BB I AR OR (B 7Y B U IR S — e
AEEARFEBCENBILIEFA
e REBENER  ARRESERR
BARE BEKELRERE A
BEACEELXEPURMNARRA R
B Oz - ARBEHZFERL
AFEEAERARKEMERERZE
I °

19. FEMNRIE ~ #2E REAMWEBUR

RECEIVABLES 18
Group Company
X&E LN
2010 2009 2010 2009
“Z2-2F C"ZTTNF ZB-BF CITITNF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR THET TET TR
Deposits paid to suppliers MRz EE 253,132 39,174 - =
Prepayments BNHE 7,158 20,121 6,500 =
Other deposits and receivables Hihik e RIEKFIE 27,583 32,553 - =
287,873 91,848 6,500 -

None of the above assets is either past due or

impaired. The financial assets included in the above

A EEREBHIORNE o A &SR
BIEN S BVE B BT B B R R

balances relate to receivables for which there was no

recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s “Other deposits and
receivables” is a rental deposit of HK$1,438,000
(2009: HK$1,438,000), placed with Silver Base
(Holdings) Limited, a company controlled by Mr.
Liang (note 31(c)). The balance is unsecured, interest-

free and is repayable at the end of the lease term.

JEWRIEE R -

AEBEZ[Htie REKRKIE | BERF
BREBE(RE)ERAF (—RBRE
EEFIF AR MHEEER$1,438,000%
T (ZZZTNF 1,438,000 7T) (i sk
31(c)) - ZEMAEER  REUKRA
PR 4 A PR iE i B (R

o

so
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R

A
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20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$204,783,695
(2009: HK$47,774,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

21. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end

20. BE RIIRITHEER

RBEER - AEBUAAREINEHE
& MIRTT 4582 5204,783,6958 L (= F
TNE 1 47,774,000870) - A RER
AERLBRAEMER - A - BIEHR
B CINEB B IGH) RGEE - EER
TEEEBERE)  AEERESBER
RERITIEA R LR BINEAEITINE
E

ROTRSRBARTREENENZR
REREVH B - SRITHESEF R &8
BB MEEBERRT -

21. B E S FE
R ERRIR = B EN B 558

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is RBRE DT T -
as follows:
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—B-2F ZETNF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FTET FHTT
Within 1 month —fEBAR 27,069 1,056
Over 3 months ={E A E 3 798
27,072 1,854

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 90-day terms.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

23.

Notes to Financial Statements
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22. HtENRIER B AE

Group Company
xKE A
2010 2009 2010 2009
“Z-TF _ITTHNE CZB-BF _TINF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR THET TR THET
Other payables H 3008 33,270 45,317 - =
Accruals AR 6,361 8,001 32 -
39,631 53,318 32 -
INTEREST-BEARING BANK 23. StERITEE
BORROWINGS
Group 2010 2009
rEE —E-%F —ZTNF
Contractual Contractual
interest rate interest rate
EHF % Maturity HKS$" 000 BHFx Maturity HK$' 000
(%) L TER (%) 5|5 A TET
Current
B
Trust receipt loans Bank best lending Bank best lending
- secured rate minus 1% rate minus 1%
ERRBER BTREX ROREE
2R BENEH1% 2010 96,782 fEEFXE1% 2009 53,165
BEEEBZRAERLD A
—E-TFEFR
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23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 23. AT ERITHEE ()

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: M 5

(@) As at 31 March 2010, the Group's banking facilities (@) MR-ZE—ZTF=-ZA=+—H A%£H
were secured by the Group’s investment property RENRTREAAEERAES
with a carrying value of HK$7,757,000 (note 14) and 7,757,000 7T (M 3114) IR E W %
a corporate guarantee provided by the Company. AR R B FR A A BB R IR -
As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s banking facilities —ZEZNF=A=1+—H A5EEH
were secured by the Group’s investment property ?Tr FHRITHEBAEEREER
with a carrying value of HK$7,966,000 (note 14) and 7,966,000/ 7T (Fi7E14) MK & ¥ 3
a personal guarantee executed by Mr. Liang. The R WAHREEETBAER -
guarantee provided by Mr. Liang was released and RELEMBENERDFER - WK
replaced by a corporate guarantee provided by the NAR _ETEFTIR A A REREUR -
Company upon the Listing.

(b) The trust receipt loans as at 31 March 2010, b) RZZE—ZF=A=+—H UET
denominated in United States dollars, were interest- 78 & 15 sE R B UR60£E90H 815
free within a credit period of 60 to 90 days and bore BEHANALE  RNEEHBEZAKZRT
interest at the banks’ foreign currency best lending HINEREEEEFNERI% (ZZEE
rate minus 1% (2009: 1%) after the credit period. All NE:1%)5H8 - FTEEFREER
trust receipt loans were fully settled within the credit HRNEERANEBEEE -
period.

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, JEER I8

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the BEFBEEERFTFAZEBHNT

year are as follows:

Group &

Depreciation allowance
in excess of related
depreciation
MEXDERBEBETE
HK$" 000
FET
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 R-ZZEZENFMA—AH -
and 1 April 2009 —EThF=ZA=+—H
;=TT NFWMA—H =
Deferred tax charged to the income FARBRERNR ZEERIE
statement during the year (note 9) (BF3E9) 250
At 31 March 2010 R-_E—ZF=A=+—H 250

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of HK$2,047,000 (2009: HK$1,117,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$4,396,000 (2009:
HK$2,608,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profit. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

Notes to Financial Statements
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IR IE (58)
AEBEBBELEZHREEBR
2,047,000 L (ZEEZE N F
1,117,000 7T) ] S (R BA Rl 1R #E 8 &
EEBEZARZARERBFE -
REBSEEFTBRARAEEELEZHE
184,396,000 T (Z T T JLF -
2,608,000/ 7T) KK —ZEAFRNEEH -
ZERIEBBEDHAT ] B EE 2R
ERBFE - AR ZEEBIREERS
BEE—REECZHELR  BARRE
ATREHSE R ADE AR E T &
WA AR BEREARLERIBEEE -

RBEPBEPEMEEE - KNP EAMK
MZINERERFIIMEEEEMZRE
BEI0% 2 AN - REREE_Z
TN\F—A—BREN BAR-ZT
+tE&+_A=+—BUBRELZEF -
fie o B b B S RSB SMR B & PTB RLE
‘R R ARBHE - B RRE
BB EHD - RAKEMS - BAH
/5% 10% c Bt - NEB AR
REAMK S B ARR T /\F
—A—BURBRELEZRBFMDIRZRE
BanTEME -

oo
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24.

25.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 March 2010, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that
are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$193,162,000 at 31 March 2010
(2009: HK$104,566,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its

shareholders.

4. IRFEBIE (&)
RZT—TF=A=+—8  LERAK
e AN i Avadl ) -=FNCT =¥ §0
ﬁm‘ﬁzx/&ﬁ”%IJZF%%%EWREEM

BIETRIE - EE2R A LAMBARE
AERRRTARAIED RBEBREF - B
—E-TF=A=+—H0 mEBERE
A E AR RECERE=28

A H%)5193,162,0008 L (ZFF AN,
4 : 104,566,000/ 7C) °

ARamERRIKRERS - WEHEE
AMERER -

SHARE CAPITAL 25. R7<
2010 2009
—g-8F  _IINF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR FHT
Authorised: ETE
100,000,000,000 100,000,000,0008%
(2009: 100,000,000,000) (ZZZ A% : 100,000,000,0008%)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREECIETHEER 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRAR
1,190,000,000 1,190,000,000%
(2009: 3,800,000) ordinary (ZZEZT N4 : 3,800,0000%)
shares of HK$0.1 each FREME B TH L AR 119,000 380

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
During the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010,

the movements in share capital were as follows:

(a)

On 23 June 2008, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$10,000,000,000 divided
into 100,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 26 September 2008, the Company issued
and allotted 3,799,999 shares of HK$0.10
each, all credited as fully paid to Yinji

Investments upon Reorganisation.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed on
20 February 2009, the directors were
authorised to issue and allot a total of
896,200,000 shares credited as fully paid to
Yinji Investments by way of capitalisation of the
sum of HK$89,620,000 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company.
The shares issued and allotted pursuant to this
resolution rank pari passu in all respects with

the existing issued shares.

On 8 April 2009, the Company issued
300,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each for cash pursuant to the Company’s initial
public offering at a price of HK$3.45 per share
to the public for listing of those shares on the

Stock Exchange.

Notes to Financial Statements
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25. BN (48)
BE-_TTNER-_ZT—ZTF=A
=t+—HIEFE  BRAEHBFROT :

(a)

RZTZENFXA=Z+=B &
A & K955 TE B% 48 F3380,0007% 7 3%
H1Z=10,000,000,0008 7T © 2 &
100,000,000,0000% & JZ & {£0.10
BITEIR ©

RZZZENFAAZ+XAB K
ARREARFEAYiNji Investments
317 M AL 5%3,799,999 B R EE
0.10B TRk + 2 EFABRSIVER
2o

BRER_ZTZNF_RAR=-+H
RANEEREZR EFERE
BARRAROEBREETRE
89,620,000/ 7T 2 # K& K1t -
FLAMAYinji Investments# 7T & Ad
345 $£896,200,000/% A BE 51| fE &4
R o RIBZORBREITRACE
MRHERBEELHITROESA
HEZERERERN -

RZZZTAFMANAR + AAFIR
BERAREERGREEE345
P& JT[A1A R 8 17300,000,0000% &
AR ET(B0. 178 7T B9 37 3% 38 AR DAHR ER
Re  BEEZFROPBERFT L -
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REEE G

R

(152
o=
XA
A

]

]
\
|



Notes to Financial Statements

S B e o B

31 March 2010 —_ZE—Z2F=A=+—H

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(e)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange.
All ordinary shares repurchased during the
year were cancelled, and the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value of the repurchased ordinary shares so
cancelled. The premium paid for the repurchase
of the ordinary shares, of HK$30,856,000,
was charged to the share premium account.
An amount equivalent to the par value of the
ordinary shares cancelled was transferred to
the capital redemption reserve as set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Details of the repurchases are summarised as

follows:

25. BN (48)

(e)

Number of ordinary

FAR - ARRABRREBR BRI S 2
L@ER - FTARFEAEE 2 @R
BT MARRZEETRA
BRABEYEFH ERRE
EEmR D o shiE R EmAkim 2
HY %4 830,856,000/ 7T E R % 5
EHERPHR - WA EREEER
B - BEREEHETAREEZ
CHEEERABRERLFE -

BRKROZFHBOT :

Price per ordinary

shares of HK$0.1 share of HK$0.1
each repurchased Highest Lowest Aggregate
Month of FBERZ2ER SREE0IET purchase
repurchase AE0.1ET LERER price
E A% EBRRZ2HE RS Bk ENAEK
HK$ HK$ HK$' 000
BT BT TR
March 2010 10,000,000 3.45 2.78 31,856
—E-ZFE=f

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
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25. RA& (8

A summary of the transactions during the years 2EZ LA RBEETRAZED M
ended 31 March 2009 and 2010 with reference to BEHEZZTENGFR_T—ZFF=H
the above movements in the Company’s issued share =T —BLEFEZXSHIINAT :

capital is as follows:

Share

Number of premium
shares in issue Issued capital account Total
ERTRAHA ERTRE  ROHBEE “Hm
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
AT FTHET FET
At 1 April 2008 RN_TZ\EMA—H 1 = = =
Issue of shares (b) BT 13 (b) 3,799,999 380 = 380

At 31 March 2009 RZZBZAF=A=+—H
and 1 April 2009 RZZETNEMA—H 3,800,000 380 - 380
Capitalisation issue () BARMELE() 896,200,000 89,620 (89,620) =
Issue of shares (d) FATR () 300,000,000 30,000 1,005,000 1,035,000
Repurchase of shares (e)  HEEIf% {7 (e) (10,000,000) (1,000) (30,856) (31,856)
1,190,000,000 119,000 884,524 1,003,524
Share issue expenses BRHETER - - (46,886) (46,886)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-ZTFE=ZR=+—H 1,190,000,000 119,000 837,638 956,638
RE K = A
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26. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and

the movements therein for the current and

prior years are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

(i)

The Group's capital reserve represents the
differences between the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company
and the aggregate of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired upon the

Reorganisation.

In accordance with the PRC Company
Law, the Company’s subsidiaries
registered in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve. When the balance of
the reserve fund reaches 50% of the
entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve must be maintained at a
minimum of 25% of registered capital

after such usages.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

26. f#1#@

(a) AN&EHE
REBREERBTFENRE
SCHEREEHBERINE MR
BE)RK o

AEBENERFEBIEARA
ERTROEERAREMAR
P A5 B B0 Bl /BB 22 B 9 BN 4
BEHZHRR -

BERBEARDE  AARR
Fh o 1 A BT B A R R
10% % € 7% & B i 18 A H
(REHBTEFENEME
BRIERELITRHBAE
Lo ERBLAEBEDETRE
B & AM50%6F - AA
GIGIR: R RNk ERE
o ZERBBARRAIAE
HHBEFEHEEIIL M
BAR AT EERBAE
CRAELLARE  E8HY
BRFERTOREME R
25% °



26. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Notes to Financial Statements
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26. f#fE (&)

Company (b) AAF
Retained
profits/
Share Capital (accumulated
premium Capital redemption losses)
account reserve reserve  REFE/ Total
RtiaEk  Erff EFRORE (RHER) 3
Notes HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
it TEL TERL TiEn TiEn T
Note (i)
(Witi)
At 1 April 2008 RZZE\EMA-H - - - - -
Reorganisation 54 - 229,208 - - 229,208
Total comprehensive EET N E
income for the year - - - 308,800 308,800
Interim 2009 dvidend ~ ZZEAERHRS n . - - (310,000 (310,000
At 31 March 2009 R-ZRAE=A=1-H
and at 1 April 2009 R-FTAFHA-A - 229208 - (12000 228,008
Total comprehensive EREENALE
income for the year - - - 173,401 173,401
Capitalisation issue v 4561 25(0) (89,620) - - = (89,620)
Issue of shares 17k { 25(d) 1,005,000 = = - 1,005,000
Share issue expenses et -4 (46,386) = = - (46,886)
Repurchase of shares EORH 25(e) (30,856) - 1,000 (1,000) (30,856)
Interim 2010 dividend ~ —E-FEHRERS " - - - (170,400  (170,400)
At 31 March 2010 RZZ-F4=f=1-H 837,638 229,208 1,000 801 1,068,647
Note: Hia -
(i)  The Company’s capital reserve represents () ARRMERRERERIEEAR

the excess of the net book values of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.

Yo B 1O B 88 2 R BR TED R (B R H P
BENVA R A B BT A D E{E A &R
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27.

28.

29.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2010 ZZ2 -4 = =+—H
CONTINGENT LIABILITY 27. IREE
At the end of the reporting period, there is a R E R - A - /R AR A5
contingent liability not provided for in the financial WMEPEELKABE - DR R
statements of the Company in respect of the BN R)E1%262,000,0008 T (—EZT H
guarantee given to a bank in connection with a F ) ZRAEMR —MRITREER -
facility granted to a subsidiary of the Company RZE—ZTF=A=+—08 ' ZHEARQ
of HK$262,000,000 (2009: Nil). As at 31 March B[R Z RITIR 2 AR PR il M 4% T 3%
2010, the banking facility granted to that subsidiary MEBARZRITRET B8R 2%
subject to the guarantee given to the bank by the #9/396,782,0007% 7T (Fff7E23) °
Company was utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$96,782,000 (note 23).
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 28. EEEH
Details of the Group’s assets pledged for securing REBMRAFEFRIESRITREERIRIT
bank borrowings and banking facilities during the BEMEREENFED AN
year are included in notes 14 and 23, respectively, to RMRKIFE145%23 °
the financial statements.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 29. EEMHERH
(@) As lessor (a) tEALEA
The Group leases its investment property (note AEERBEERNERHHAER
14 to the financial statements) under operating HEME (FBHREMT14) - &
lease arrangement, with lease negotiated for EmEESHRAME - HEHR
a term of two years. The terms of the lease —RINEIFERBAZNERZS -
generally also require the tenant to pay security
deposits.
As at 31 March 2010, the Group had total RZE—ZFF=A=+—H &£
future minimum lease receivables under non- ERIREEAEAPEI LA
cancellable operating lease with its tenant HHEERERD ARERN R
falling due as follows: R EEEFIBEENFBEAT
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FER T T
Within one year —F A 2 42
In the second to fifth years, FFEREERF - 2
inclusive (BEEEMSF)
2 44

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



29. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)

(b)

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging

from nine months to three years.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

S 35 ¥k & Bt sk

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

SEHEZH (E)

(b)

1B A A
AEBEREEEHELHHEAS
Tz - ZEMENHAELERE
MEEHBRNFABRAZE=4 -

R-ZF—FF=-A=t+—H A£&
I*ETFTT&%JME% iR Pt
5 B < B9 R 2R & K TH B 5B AR B
MFEBMT :

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—B-BF —ZEZNF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
THER FHET
Within one year —F RN 19,701 12,774
In the second to fifth years, E_EFEERERF 11,388 1,720

inclusive (REERME)

After five years RAEFLE 111 =
31,200 14,494

REE A

R
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=
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30. COMMITMENTS 30. A&IE
B £ SCPH RE29(b) AT 7 sl ) 2 B AE B A IR
S AEERBERREUNTREFR

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 29(b) above, the Group had the
following inventory purchase commitments at the

end of the reporting period:

AHE

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAB T
Within one year —F R 1,146,428 761,267
In the second to fifth years, EFFEFRF 7,792,770 1,670,972

inclusive (BREEEMF)

Over five years BEFLE 6,370,367 4,281,197
15,309,565 6,713,436
In addition to the above, the Group had B bt EN REER -_ZEZTAE=A

commitments in respect of the professional service
fees for the Listing of HK$6,069,000 as at 31 March
2009 which has been settled during the year.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the

Group had the following material transactions

with related parties during the year:

Notes to Financial Statements
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3. BEBARS

(a) BRANBAHS MK EADE 5 AT &
K5I AERERAF EERER T
BETUTERRS :

Group
FEE
2010 2009
—2-BF 2
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
Wiz THERT TET

Mr. Liang: R -

Rental expenses HEE (i) 763 753

A related company beneficially R EEEZEFH

owned by Mr Liang: FiUNET
Rental expenses paid to: BN FRE(ER)
Silver Base (Holdings) BERARMHEEER
Limited (ii) 8,628 8,628

Notes: Hiet -

(i) The office rental expenses of two offices for () HEZENFR-_ZT-ZTF=
the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010 A=+—BHLEFENMEHQ
were charged based on mutually agreed terms EZHAEHEERNIREME
at fixed monthly amounts of RMB37,000 and EREMNGR  RBREESHE

(i)

RMB 19,000, respectively.

The rental expenses of an office and a staff
quarter were charged based on mutually
agreed terms at fixed monthly amounts of
HK$239,000 and HK$480,000, respectively.
In the opinion of the directors, the rental
expenses were determined by reference to
the prevailing market rental of comparable
premises.

D RIAAREE37,000T R AR
19,0007 Y2 HY. °

(i —FAWRAER—FEEIBEEHNE
EEBRTIRBEERZEA G
5 ABETE &8 514239,000
78 7T % 480,000/ TLRER - EH
RAE - HERZNBZENLEY
(MG amsHEEmER -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

Pursuant to a deed of indemnity dated
25 March 2009, Mr. Liang agreed to
provide the Group taxation indemnities
for the benefit of the companies now
comprising the Group. The provisions are
conditional on the same conditions stated
in the paragraph headed ”Conditions of
the Hong Kong Public Offering” in the
section headed “Structure of the Global
Offering” in the prospectus issued by
the Company dated 30 March 2009,
becoming unconditional on or before
31 December 2009, or such other date
as the parties to this deed may agree
failing which this deed shall become null
and void and cease to have any effect

whatsoever.

The personal guarantee provided by
Mr. Liang in relation to the Group’s
general banking facilities (note 23(a)) was

released upon the Listing.

Outstanding balance with a related
party:
Details of the Group’s rental deposits to Silver

Base (Holdings) Limited as at the end of the

reporting period are disclosed in note 19 to the

financial statements.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010

3. BEBARES (58)

(b) EERAEE N EVEMRZ S :

(i)

RER-_ZTZTAF=A
“TRHFZHBERE
RELER B A B ATAEKAE
B 1) 2 ) B9 ) 25 17 A A SR
REVERE - BRIGHA
FARNRR=ZTEZNF=A
ZSTANENBRERR
[RRRBEENRE] —HF
BAFMBEENGRE] — B
MHERGEER —ZTNEF
T-A=t—R (AZEAE
RIAIT AT RERI B Y EL At B HR)
AR BEGRERTSE
R fid R BE A A3 B A5 - R
% TR G & R B R R A
BEAEMB -

RELRAEEH —RIRIT
B A& AT G R0 B A R AR (B
i£23(a)) ER TR ARER -

(o) BEREEE )T M AREERGEER

AEBRBREHREMNEERE (£
E)ERATNEERENFEH
R ERERMTEI ©



31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

Notes to Financial Statements

S 35 ¥k & Bt sk

31 March 2010 —ZE—ZF=A=+—H

3. BEBARES (58)

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$’'000 HK$' 000
FH T FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBREYA =
in kind 56,438 31,229
Pension scheme contributions RIRTEFIET B3R 198 132
56,636 31,361

Balance includes compensation of Ms. Luo
Li, the spouse of Mr. Liang, a director of
the Company, of HK$3,102,000 (2009:
HK$2,612,000). Further details of directors’
emoluments are included in note 7 to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(a)(i) and (a)(ii) also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

EAEHRBERMALZL (BRAXK
NAEFREENEB) 9FH M
3,102,000 T (Z 2T I :
2,612,0008 L) - EEMemE
—SH BN B RRMEET -

5B (a)(i) R (a)(ii) 2R Py 2t 1O BE B 05 2 5 T
A LT R RIS 14AE BT 5 TE B0 F5 4B R 2

%5 -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 32. e T AMER
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of EHMem T ANREHRNREEMBESR
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T~

period are as follows:

Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-BF —ETNF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Loans and receivables: B K EWRIE
Trade receivables U E 5 FRIE 43,282 25,950
Financial assets included in STAERRIE - B
prepayments, deposits and K2 H At JiE W SR IR Y
other receivables SREE 35,090 34,367
Cash and bank balances R RIRITH R 977,748 85,844
1,056,120 146,161
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTAF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FER FHEIT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R HR AT BR &Y
TRIBME
Trade payables ERE 5 5IR 27,072 1,854
Financial liabilities included in SFAEMENFRIE R 21,823 20,090
other payables and accruals EtEENESRAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE 96,782 53,165
145,677 75,109

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)
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32. e T EMER (&)

Company
b N
2010 2009
—E-2F e S
HK$' 000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Loans and receivables: B WK IE
Due from subsidiaries JE o Bt /BB 1 B SR IE 635,749 -
Cash and bank balances W RIRITHER 339,065 -
974,814 =
Company
b NG|
2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FERT FHET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 2 S K R 5] BR B9
TRIBME:
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE b & A R IE K 32 =
payables and accruals EtaEN /e E
Due to subsidiaries XN EPNGIE 23,223 1,200
23,255 1,200

o
g
e
J )
[5]
=
A 2t

B
B
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT EEEREEERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise AEENFESR T EBEG SRIT
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and cash and BEARB e RRITHEMS - 2SI
bank balances. The main purpose of these financial ENTERBRRAASEENEEES
instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. B AKBEEEHMEREERE
The Group has various other financial assets and & - EWE ZFIE - ke RHAMER
liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and H- HMENMRBEREGESRIE B
other receivables, other payables and trade payables, VESRBRHEEEEBES -

which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial HASENeRITAEENETEZRRR
instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit FMER - mEBECRER  FERRK
risk and foreign currency risk. The board of directors HINERR  ZEESEMNRBERAETE
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of ZERBAOBR - FEESAmaT

these risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk M =R 32 B

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in AEBEERENMSNEEHRABEE
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's FﬁEJBAﬁ’EEM HEBF R BRITE
interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating c AEREFERITEBEENERMER
interest rates. The effective interest rates and é@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁéﬂﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂS °

terms of repayment of the interest-bearing bank
borrowings of the Group are set out in note 23 to

these financial statements.

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points in FESOEEHN S BRI LB I G H AR E
interest rates would have no material impact on the BFRNMEaRBEERATE - ¥¢$'§
Group's income statement during the year and there Wz (TEREREANE) TELE -

would be no impact on the Group’s equity (excluding

retained earnings).

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. For Hong Kong operations, all
sales and purchases transactions are settled in Hong
Kong dollars or United States dollars. Meanwhile,
most of the sales and purchases transactions in the
PRC operations are settled in RMB. Accordingly, the
transactional currency exposures of the Group are
not significant. The Group has not entered into any
hedging transaction to reduce the Group’s exposure

to foreign currency risk in this regard.

A reasonably possible change of 5% to 10% in the
exchange rate between the Hong Kong dollar and
RMB per annum would have no material impact on
the Group’s income statement during the year and
there would be no material impact on the Group’s

equity.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from the risk of
counterparties defaulting on the terms of their
agreements. The carrying amounts of cash and bank
balances and trade receivables and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit

risk in relation to financial assets.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of a financial guarantee, further details
of which are disclosed in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Notes to Financial Statements

33.

St 85 i 7 W wE

31 March 2010 =2 —ZH=A=+—H
BHEEMREEEERBRE
(#8)

HINES [ B

AEBEAERSHHEERRER - 25H
BIRE S EENMNEAE S NI
‘bﬁgﬁﬁ"%”ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬁa o MBBEL

CFTBEBERZHAB TR ETLLE
HoRE ABLOFEEBHNEERS
HAAREESE - Bt - REBFA&EE
MR GEEERBRITEK - NREBIW
EETTAERRZUR D RNEBEE
77 T BT T 9 B9 71N S R B o

ALTEAREEXRSFARELES
E10%MAEES EHHFALEE
MERXRUBEATE  BTEHAR
BHESBEEATE -

= EE R
EEREREZHE T ER DR EROR
ol - RERBITHEBKARBKE S
TR N B At FE U SR M BR B E R A SR
HREeREEMEAENRAEERR

$"ETD‘_F7%$E{ MBERMAEEE
Rk - E— S HF BRI RER M E27H

e

REE A

R

o

\
il

A m
=
A



Notes to Financial Statements

St 5 e 3 W Gk

31 March 2010 —_ZE—Z2F=A=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B BKEREEEBEEZEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk on an
ongoing basis, and credit evaluations are performed
on customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. The credit
risk on balances of cash and bank balances is low as
those balances are placed with reputable financial

institutions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as over 80%
(2009: 90%) of the Group’s trade receivables were

due from the Group'’s five customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables

are disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of interest-bearing bank borrowings and
trade finance facilities. The Group’s financing
activities are managed centrally by maintaining
an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to
finance the Group’s operations. The Group also
ensures the availability of bank credit facilities to

address any short term funding requirements.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B UBEAREEESERERE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)

Liquidity risk (continued) mBESRER(E)

The maturity profile of the Group's and the AEBERAR 7?;?9%’7*555/%17*’7%%5

Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the FEMNERABERRE AR IS

reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted wm

payments, is as follows:

Group KEH
2010
—E-EF
3 to 12
Less than months
3 months =EA=E Total
=EAR T=EAR #mt
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET FHET
Trade payables FET & 5 5/IE 27,069 3 27,072
Financial liabilities included &1 B b FE A 518
in other payables and KIEFTEER
accruals EMEE 21,823 = 21,823
Interest-bearing bank ATERITEE
borrowings 96,782 - 96,782
145,674 3 145,677
RESEEEZEZRERLQA
—T-TFEEY
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

=

33. &
(II

il

i)

&

mBEZERE (8)

BREREBEEEEREX

2009
ZEEAF
3 to 12
Less than months
3 months =@EA=E Total
Z@EAR T=EAR #t
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHET FHET FHET
Trade payables FERTE 5 5KI8 1,056 798 1,854
Financial liabilities included &1 B b FE A 5R1E
in other payables and KIEFTEER
accruals EMEE 20,090 = 20,090
Interest-bearing bank FTERITEE
borrowings 53,165 - 53,165
74,311 798 75,109
Company KAF
2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF
Less than Less than
3 months 3 months
=ZEAR =EAA
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERT FHET
Financial liabilities included in ST A EL A JE A 5RIE &
other payables and accruals BB EMNESRARE 32 -
Amount due to a subsidiary FE B B A R FRIA 23,223 1,200
Guarantee given to a bank in B AR ERFE
connection with a facility granted i M R1TIE L HE 1R
to a subsidiary 96,782 -
120,037 1,200

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010



33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes of the
Group’s capital management policy for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2010 and
31 March 2009.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total adjusted equity
plus net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing
bank borrowings, trade payables and other payables
less cash and bank balances. Capital represents
equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

Company.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of

shareholders’ equity.
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34.

35.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Reversal of write-down of inventories to net
realisable value which was included in “Other
income/(expenses)” on the face of the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2009
has been reclassified as “Other income and gains”
to conform with the current year’s presentation. The
directors are in the opinion that such presentation
would give a fairer presentation of the operation of

the Group.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
11 June 2010.

Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010
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